CITY OF BILOXI
AGENDA ITEM
FACT SHEET

Item No.: 4D

Council Meeting Date: May 19, 2026

ITEM TITLE: RESOLUTION
INTRODUCED BY: Mayor Andrew "FoFo" Gilich

CONTACT PERSON: Riclk Weavpr, CAO
(L7
Jerry Cree {rector of Community Development

SUMMARY EXPLANATION:
Resolution denying Conditional Use approval to authorize construction of a 6,700 square feet plaza to include a

convenience store, with gas sales and two tenant spaces, situated within LB Neighborhood Business zone and identified

as 416 Popp's Ferry Road,

Case No. 26-022-PC, Ward 4, Ulhas Sawant/Bobby Heinrich

Resolution

v Ordinance Public Hearing Routine Agenda

Exhibits for Review

Contract Minutes ‘/___ Plans/Maps Deed - Lease

Other (Specify): application, case fact sheet, site plan

Submittal Authorization: Council President Mayor v
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Planning Commission recommends DENJAL
COUNCIL ACTION:  Motion By: Second By:
Yote: Councilmember Yes No AFR ABST Councilmember Yes No AFR ABST
Gray ' Tisdale
Marshall Gilavan
Nail Shoemaker
Creel
ACTION TAKEN:

cdl/051926apc




Resolution No.

RESOLUTION DENYING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE
CONSTRUCTION OF A CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GAS SALES, WITHIN ALB -
LIMITED BUSINESS ZONE AND IDENTIFIED AS 416 POPP’S FERRY ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-022-PC, Ulhas Sawant (owner)
and Robert Heinrich (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Ulhas Sawant (owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant),
has submitted this request for Conditional Use approval, to authorize construction of a 6,700
square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two tenant spaces, upon a
parcel of land measuring approximately 215’ x 270.76°, presently situated within LB
Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001); and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after much discussion and
citizens comments, voted 11-1-0, to recommend denial of the Conditional Use, to authorize
construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two
tenant spaces, upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215” X 270.76, presently situated
within a LB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001), having determined that said project, as presented, has not been found to

promote the public interest at this location, that said use has not been designed, located, and

proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and welfare will be protected, that said



use will cause substantial injury to other property in the neighborhood which located, and that
the use does not conform to all regulations of the LB Neighborhood Business zoning; and
WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby
adopts the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that
denial of the request for Conditional Use is appropriate.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY

COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, hereby denies the Conditional Use

approval, to authorize construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store,
with Gas Sales and two tenant spaces, upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215° X
270.76°, presently situated within a LB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416
Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel No.l1110A-01-051.001), in Case No. 26-022-PC, Ulhas
Sawant (owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant), having determined that the proposed
Conditional Use does not fully meet all standards required by the Land Development Ordinance,
specifically determining that said use does not promote the public interest at this location, has not
been designed, located and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety and welfare
will be protected, and that said use could result in substantial injury to other properties in the

neighborhood in which it is located.

.........................................................................................................



Resolution No.

RESOLUTION CALLING FOR A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO A REQUEST
FOR CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE CONSTRUCTION OF A
CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GAS SALES, WITHIN A LB -LIMITED BUSINESS ZONE
AND IDENTIFIED AS 416 POPP’S FERRY ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr, Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-022-PC, Ulhas Sawant (owner)
and Robert Heinrich (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Ulhas Sawant (owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant),
has submitted this request for Conditional Use approval, to authorize construction of a 6,700
square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two tenant spaces, upon a
parcel of land measuring approximately 215> x 270.76’, presently situated within LB
Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001); and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after much discussion and
citizens comments, voted 11-1-0, to recommend denial of the Conditional Use, to authorize
construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two
tenant spaces, upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215’ X 270.76, presently situated
within a LB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001), having determined that said project, as presented, has not been found to

promote the public interest at this location, that said use has not been designed, located, and

proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and welfare will be protected, that said



use will cause substantial injury to other property in the neighborhood which located, and that
the use does not conform to all regulations of the LB Neighborhood Business zoning; and

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Biloxi, Mississippi, having given the Planning
Commission's recommendation full consideration, has determined that this is a matter of general
public concern, and being so, it is in the best interest of the community to hold a public hearing on
this matter before the City Council.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, will conduct a public hearing in reference to Case No. 26-
022-PC, Ulhas Sawant (owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant), on a date to be set and in
accordance with all requirements, as prescribed by the City of Biloxi Land Development Ordinance

governing the conduct of public hearings.



Resolution No.

RESOLUTION GRANTING CONDITIONAL USE APPROVAL TO AUTHORIZE
CONSTRUCTION OF A CONVENIENCE STORE WITH GAS SALES, WITHINALB -
LIMITED BUSINESS ZONE AND IDENTIFIED AS 416 POPP’S FERRY ROAD

WHEREAS, on Thursday, April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Comunission held a public
hearing in the Auditorium of the Dr, Martin Luther King, Jr., Municipal Building, 676 Dr. Martin
Luther King, Jr. Boulevard, Biloxi, Mississippi, to hear Case No. 26-022-PC, Ulhas Sawant (owner)
and Robert Heinrich (applicant), a request for Conditional Use approval, for the property identified
as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road; and

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission members were apprised of the particulars of this
case, being made cognizant of the fact that Ulhas Sawant (owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant),
has submitted this request for Conditional Use approval, to authorize construction of a 6,700
square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two tenant spaces, upon a
parcel of land measuring approximately 215" x 270.76°, presently situated within LB
Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001); and

WHEREAS, on April 2, 2026, the Biloxi Planning Commission, after much discussion and
citizens comments, voted 11-1-0, to recommend denial of the Conditional Use, to authorize
construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales and two
tenant spaces, upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215” X 270.76°, presently situated
within a LB Neighborhood Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel
No.1110A-01-051.001), having determined that said project, as presented, has not been found to
promote the public interest at this location, that said use has not been designed, located, and

proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and welfare will be protected, that said



use will cause substantial injury to other property in the neighborhood which located, and that
the use does not conform to all regulations of the LB Neighborhood Business zoning; and

WHEREAS, the Biloxi City Council, after consideration of all facts presented, hereby
rejects the report and findings of the Biloxi Planning Commission, and in so doing, determines that
this Convenience Store with gas sales is appropriate for the site identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry
Road.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BILOXI, MISSISSIPPI, hereby approves the requested Conditional Use, to
authorize construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza to include a Convenience Store, with Gas
Sales, and two more tenant spaces upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215° X
270.76°, presently situated within a LB Limited Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s
Ferry Road (re: Tax Parcel No.1110A-01-051.001), in Case No. 26-022-PC, Ulhas Sawant
(owner) and Robert Heinrich (applicant), having determined that said project, as presented, has
been found to promote the public interest at this location, that said use has been designed,
located, and proposed to be operated so that the public health, safety, and welfare will be
protected, that said use will not cause substantial injury(ies) to other property(ies) in the
neighborhood in which located, and with this approval, the use conforms to all regulations for

the LB Limited Business zoning district.
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Ulhas Sawant (owner)

Scheduled for
April 2, 2026 Bobby Heinrich (applicant)
PC Meeting Case No. 26-022-PC
: Conditional Use
Bilo
: “eslablished 1699
Planning Commission
' Case Fact Sheet
Case No.: , '26-022- PC |
Name of Owner: . Ulhas Sawant .
Applicant; _Bobby Heinrich
Address of Property . 416 Popp's Ferry Road
Tax Parcels/Ward: 1110A-01-051.001/ Ward 4
Request: ACor.lvditional'U-se R .

Purpose of Request:

SiZe of F"foberty:
Flood Zone:
Prese-nt' Zdning: |
Present Use:

Most Nearly

Bounded By (strests):

Adverse Influences:

Positive Influences:

.. 270.78,

'To conSIder an appllcatron requestmg Conditional Use

approval, to authonze construction of a 6,700 square feet
Plaza to include’ a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales,
upon a parcel of land measuring approximately 215' X
presenﬂy situated within LB Neighborhood
Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp’s Ferry Road
(re: Tax Pa{ce! No.1110A-01-051.001).

215’ X'QTQ.Té’ (more or less)

X

LB Limited Business

Vacant Land

To the North of and adjacent to Atkinson Road,; fo.the ‘South
of Bertucci Boulevard; to the East of and fronting upon
Popps Ferry Road, and fo the West of Bertucci Boulevard.

; Care must be exermsed before grantmg any Conditional Use
to ensure that the ob}ectives of C:ty regulatlons are fully

*followed.

The feeljested Conditional Use will allow the applicant to
construct a 6,700-square-foot Plaza, including a corivenience
store with gas sales, with two additional tenant spaces, on a




Uthas Sawant (owner)
Bobby Heinrich (applicant)
Case No. 26-022-PC
Conditional Use

Page 2

Letters or
Concerns stated:

Comments/

Recommendations:

Options:
1.

vacant parcel of land.

The Planning Division Office has received two letters in
opposition to this case as of March 26, 2026.

Ulhas Sawant submitted an application for Conditional Use
approval to authorize construction of a 6,700 square feet
Plaza to include -a Convenience Store, with Gas Sales, and
two more tenant spaces upon a parcel of land measurmg
approximately 215’ X 270.76', presently situated within LB
Limited Business zone, and identified as 416 Popp's Ferry
Road (re: Tax Parce! No. 111OA 01-051.001).

The applicants stated they are- proposing to construct 6,700
square feet +/- plaza that will contain approximately 3,700
square feet for a proposed convenience stors, and two 1,500
square feet tenant spaces. The convenience store wil aiso

consist of gas SaleS‘Wlth 6 gas pump dispensers.

As part of any Conditional Use application review, the
Planning Commission must determine that the Conditional
Use, as proposed, will' “provide for the public interest at this
location, Is compatible with the neighborhood, avoids
adverse impacts on neighbors, maintains safe traffic flow,
protects property valugs in the neighborhood, ahd complies
with all relevant city, state and federal laws and reguia’gions.

The Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed
this project, and authorized the applicant to make an
application to the Planning Commission and City Council for
Conditional Use approval,

Recommend approval of this request for Conditional Use, to authorize
construction of a 6,700 square feet Plaza fo_include a Convenience Store, with

Gas Sales, and two more tenant spaces upon a parcel of land measuring
approximately 215" X 270.76", presently situated within LB Limited Business
zone, having determined that the proposed use at this location promotes and
protects the public health, safety, and welfare of the City, that said use will have
no significant negative impact upon the surrounding area, and that said
Conditional Use meets or exceeds all Conditional Use Standards, as prescribed

by the Land Development Ordinance.




Ulhas Sawant (owner)
Bobby Heinrich (applicant)
Case No. 26-022-PC
Conditional Use

Page 3

2. Recommend denial of the Conditional Use, having determined that said use
does not promote the public interest at this location, and has not been found to
meet all requirements for said use, as outlined in the Standards for Conditional
Use approval contained within the Land Development Ordinance.
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To Be Completed by Owner/Applicant
Name of Rightful Owner(s): Name of Applicant; (if different than Owner)
Ulhas Sawant o Robert Helrnich with Helnrich & Assadiates, LLC

Property Address: 4l l ) Ward Number
NE ngl)ters):ectfon of Popps Ferry Rd. & Atkinson Roa ps F&M '{00-6{ 4

ﬁx. Fﬁfg%ientaﬁr%o& t\ﬁimber s): -
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Mailing Address of Property Owner:

1896 Paul David Drive ki e
City: Biloxi #F 'Citmulfpar |
State:Ms |-Statemy! mﬁ, I
Zln: 39532 Zip: 30501 " Nue |
County Harrison ‘ __e@0untyamson K |
Telephone:(228) 229-5308 Telephone( 2%%3_8 6768
Property Size (please glve in acres or by dimension ) 131a4AC %
Present Zoning Classification: L8 By o

ERG:RIERICt? Yes _ No Xa'If so, which Di TGt

=i No x o
Sou@h | East. West |
R, Poppsaig Bertucct Bivd

if property direg fronts o’?" ”’“djaceﬁ’t‘?éne b
streets above, Ejﬂ,éa%se ind{cé %egjzwith E% B v

A epal"‘“iepsuppi ﬁ“ént‘ form is

REQUESTﬁgﬂg\gng‘yg’BY “THER AN

required for each): v ot SR G
Text Amendment 53 _5’ TG i‘ g"’%g}mg%‘a f l
Zoning Map Amendment — musticias 2one cassiicalion charge n naratve

Planned Development

Master Plan/Update

Preliminary Subdivision Review

v/ | Conditional Use

Public ROW Vacation

Street Name Change

Variance

Appeal

Tree Removal

Revised March 2025
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GENERAL INFORMATION, READ BEFORE EXECUTING. Attendance by the applicant(s) at
the public hearing is mandatory; however, the applicant may designate a representative to
attend the public hearing on his/her behalf, provided said representative has been properly
designated to speak on the applicant's behalf either by wriften permission or oral
designation by the applicant at the Public Hearing. If a continuance is to be granted, the
applicant must request same in writing a minimum of seven (7) days in advance of the
scheduled public hearing. The applicant acknowledges that, in signing this application, all
conditions and requirements inherent in the application process have been fully explained
and understood, including the timetable for processing of the application; the applicant has
further received the following appropriate handouts: Application Processing Timetable;
Instructions for Application Completion, Procedures for a Conditional Use or Community
Unit Plan; and Varlance Procedures. The completed application must be returned to the
Planning Office not later than the first or third Thursday of any month in order that a public
hearing may be held on the first or third Thursdaﬁof the foliowing month. Receipt of fee(s)

does not constitute receipt of a completed applita ion.

The Planning Gommission (PC) is a recomn ,e@dation board, all cases will go to
the Biloxi City Council for a ﬁnal;;dgﬁftﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ% If any case is denied by the

Biloxi City Council, you will have tefi}(10) days tb dbpeal their decision.

f_; G o R

Signature of Rightfyl Owner B3t P Gr
N R . l'm
ot Sigag saDatesney 05 Notary-Signafure  Date-
. araliks o8 ey ) ! : &

LY
B
4?#;:,,',;[,,

Y,
o/
L
12
-
2
3
[47]
q——
o)

If someone other than the applicant needség
andaddress(es) below: B T

NOTE: Please see attached instructions for detalls on documents required for
a_complete application.

Revised March 2025




Conditionai Use — The purpose of the Condftlonal Use is to provide for certain uses that, because of
their unique characteristics, can be allowed with special consideration in each case of the impact of
those uses upon neighboring land and of the public need for the particular use at the particular
location. Because of their unique characteristics, however, each of these requires the exercise of

planning Judgment on a case-by-case basis.

SEPARATE STATEMENT OF SUPPORT MUST BE ATTACHED - The narrative must set
forth proposed use and justification for the change, ufiliz ing criteria set forth in Section 23-6- -1(e) of the
Biloxi Code of Ordinances and including all propos%%and existing structures as well as the uses
planned for the site in question. Be specific as to.deVeldpyient proposals, sale of property, or other

transactions/plans proposed or scheduled for prepar’aﬁo%'s_ub.]ect to this rezoning request being granted
T 1%

anvroval,

Detailed Site Plan Attached (If no site planis attacﬁ" d j éppl:catlon is considered
incomplete and will not he accepted.) S

Criteria: Please respond to all yes answers. _.ossssosn,.

1. Is the use necessary to promote the public interest at that loGation? Yes /] {No[ ]

T -

Please explain:

%‘4

. lsthe use desugned

s Yes L1 Nol]

Lot L R T

publlc health, safety :

Please explain:
Yes, the proposed project willg

alica f’_
3. Will the use cause stan PRIRuryaS oths spro“f)"é?'t ini
iny %@n %4 : eig %&‘* a&%%‘fes[} No |/

Neighborhood in jehitaSlboated B
Please explain;

No, the proposed profect will not cause substantial inju

4, Does the use conform to all district regulations of the applicable zoning .
district in which it is to be located, unless other provisions are specifically set Yes /] |No [}

forth in the requirements governing specific Conditional Uses?

Please explain: _Yes, the proposed will confirm to all district regulations of the applicable zoning district,

Revised July 29, 2024




5. Have satisfactory provisions and arrangements been made concerning the following, where
applicable:
Please explain

Conditional Use Supplement N/A  iYes| No

1. Ingress and egress?

<

2. Off-street parking and loading areas, where required, with parficular
attention to the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the Conditional

Use on adjoining properties and properties generally in the
zoning district?

3. Refuse and service areas?

4. Utliities, with reference to location, availability, and"¢o 'pa&é;iliiy?
i %
5. Screening and buffering, with reference to type, dlmgnsron )
and character? fet _ ,q_,“-_l-.,‘ ~
8. Signs, if any, and proposed exterior lighting, with.teference to glare,
traffic s afety, economic effect and compatibility and harmon Wi
properties in the zoning district?

SOISIK] <

7. Required yards ad t

Revised July 29, 2024
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CONDITIONAL USE NARRATIVE

1.31+/- Acre Parcel
Popps Ferry Road, Biloxi, Mississippi
PIDN No.: 1110A-01-051.001

The official name and address of the applicant for this application is as follows:
Ulhas Sitaram
1896 Paul David Drive
Biloxi, MS, 39532
The official name and address of the applicant’s agent for this application is as follows:
Robert Heinrich
Heinrich & Associates, LLC
1806 23rd Ave., Ste B
Gulfport, MS 38501
228-896-6768

The subject property is generally located directly at the northeastern intersection
of Popps Ferry Road and Atkinson Road. The parcel is currently zoned LB (Limited
Business District) per the Official Zoning Map of the City of Biloxi, and the application is
to request conditional use approval for the construction of a convenience store with

gasoline service.
1. Narrative:

This application requests Conditional Use approval to develop and operate a
convenience store with gasoline sales within the Limited Business (LB) zoning district in
the City of Biloxi. The proposed development consists of a single-story commercial retail
building that is 6,700 sqguare feet in total. This commercial building will be spilt into 3
separate retail spaces, with the proposed convenience store with gas pumps being
3,700 square feet, and two lease spaces each 1,500 square feet. The proposed
convenience store with gasoline sales will consist of 6 fuel pumps covered by a metal
canopy. The site will also include the required number of off-street parking spaces in
compliance with the City regulations, as well as landscaping, signage, and lighting all
designed in accordance with City regulations. The proposed project is intended to
provide neighborhood-serving retail goods and fuel services to residents, commercial
businesses, commuters, and visitors within the surrounding area.

The proposed commercial development will fully adhere to all the city's LB zoning
requirements regarding lot size, setbacks, impervious surface area, and building
heights. The 6,700 square foot building has been orlented towards the primary roadway
to maintain a commercial streetscape presence, while the fueling canopy has been
positioned to minimize visual and operation impacts on adjacent properties. Gas
stations and fuel storage tanks are a highly regulated use that will comply with all state
and local environmental standards, including fiberglass tank, spill containment, and
ongoing monitoring as required. Traffic impacts are expected to be limited, as many
customers will be from pass-by trips, nearby residents, or commercial businesses. The
site has been designed with safe access and clear circulation, specifically there will be




f(_&". (r\]

three points of ingressfegress with a clear direction of traffic flow around the six pump
stations. Hours of operation are proposed to be limited to 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 p.m.,
reducing late-night activity, and while the gas station lighting will remain on for safety, all
lighting will be fully shielded and directed downward to prevent light spiflover into nearby
homes. Deliveries will be scheduled during reasonable hours to minimize disturbance.
Additional landscaping and huffering will further ensure compatibility with nearby

commercial businesses and residential properties.

LB zoning is intended to accommodate low-intensity commercial uses that
primarily serve nearby residential neighborhoods and limited regional traffic while
maintaining compatibility with surrounding properties. The proposed convenience store
with gasoline sales is consistent with this intent, as it provides daily goods and services
to nearby residents, commuters, and commercial businesses and supports existing
traffic patterns along established roadways without generating excessive heavy
commercial traffic. The proposed development has been carefully designed to ensure
compatibility with adjacent uses through appropriate site planning, buffering,
landscaping, and operational considerations.

The proposed convenience store with gasoline sales will serve the surrounding
community by providing accessible fuel and daily necessities within close proximity to
residential neighborhoods. This reduces travel distances for routine shopping trips,
supports local employment opporiunities, and enhances economic activity within the LB
corridor. The use is consistent with the character and intent of the Limited Business
zoning district and will not adversely affect public health, safety, or general welfare.

The design features, operational controls, and regulatory compliance measures
described above, the proposed development satisfies the criteria for Conditional Use
approval within the LB zoning district. Based on this information, the applicant
respectfully requests the Planning Commission approval for Conditional Use.
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415 De Jean Cove

iwldien STEPHEN W. DuMMER Esa

sdummen@d|g-plle.com

Case No.: 26-022-PC
W

Hearing Date: April 2, 2026 EC E!\ [E

To: Biloxi Planning Commission
Re: Conditional Use Application - Convenience Store with Gas Sales MAR 25 2026
Location: 416 Popp’s Ferry Road, Biloxi, Mississippi 39531
pp’s Ferry pp L () Lo
To Whom it May Concern, OPPOS (O

I write in opposition to the proposed convenience store located at 416 Popps Ferry Road. The proposed
convenience store with fuel service is respectfully not appropriate at this location due to its direct,
foreseeable, and adverse impact on traffic operations, public safety, and overall corridor functionality.
While fuel service within the corridor is currently distributed in a manner that generally accommodates both
directions of trave (i.e. Clark Oil at northeast corner of Popp’s/Pass serving northbound traffic and Chevron
at Pass/Beauvoir serving southbound traffic), the proposed development, when considered alongside the
Popp’s Ferry Road extension, will clearly disrupt this balance and create an ingffioient and uncoordinated
service pattern moving forward and irrevocably change the culture and appearance of the neighborhood.

The extension of Popp’s Ferry Road to Highway 90 represents a fundamental shift in how traffic will move
through this corridor. This is not a minor change; it redefines the primary north-south connection to the
beach area. As a result, the existing fuel station at Beauvoir Road and Pass Road, while technically serving
southbound traffic today, will no longer function as an effective or logical service point for a significant
portion of corridor users, This change will not eliminate demand; it will relocate and concentrate it. As a
result, the proposed location along Popp’s Ferry Road will capture not only northbound traffic, but aiso a
stbstantial share of southbound traffic that no longer passes through the Beauvoir/Pass intersection, This
creates a predictable and unavoidable convergence of traffic demand at a single signalized intersection that
is already constrained and operating under existing congestion, It is not uncommon that northbound traffic
is backed up from the Popps Ferry Bridge to Pass Road due to congestion caused by traffic volunie, the
bridge being elevated or nearly any other traffic incident. The proposed gas station would compound that
situation to a level rendering the road untraversable during critical hours.

With the foreseeable expansion of the Popps Ferry Road, this proposed gas station will further compound
the complications from the proposed bridge and lane widening. Further, because of the unique character of
the neighborhood, creating another location, that will likely be near or under the proposed expansion bridge,
will provide additional locations for transients and/or homeless to gather which should be avoided.

Fuel stations are not passive land uses. They generate a high volume of short, frequent irips with continuous
ingress and egress throughout the day. This increase in volume would result in ¢ven more accidents and
traffic incidents. Introducing this intensity of turning movements at an already overburdened signal will
degrade its performance, In addition, the current intersection design relies on designated, limited-length turn
lanes to manage vehicle stacking for movements onto Atkinson Road and into the adjacent neighborhood.
These stacking lanes are already constrained (whereby it is not uncommen to sit through multiple green
lights before one can pass through). The introduction of additional turning movements associated with the
proposed fuel station, particularly from southbound traffic, creates a high likelihood that vehicle queues will
exceed available storage capacity. When this occurs, queued vehicles will extend beyond the designated turn
lanes and spill back into the through lanes of Popp’s Ferry Road. This condition would obstruct through




traffic, reduce overall roadway efficiency, and create a cascading delay effect along the corridor. Given that
no physical improvements are feasible to expand these storage areas, this represents a predictable and
unmitigated operational failure point. Southbound vehicles will be required to make left turns across
opposing traffic to access the site, increasing conflict points, delay, and the likelihood of queue stacking into
through lanes, These conditions are widely recognized as contributing factors to both operational
inefficiency and elevated crash risk. Importantly, this impact cannot be mitigated through typical means.
There is no feasible opportunity for roadway widening, additional turn lanes, or other physical
improvements that would offset the added demand. As such, the burden is not whether the intersection can
be adjusted to accommodate the use, but whether the use itself is appropriate given known constraints. In

this case, it is not.

Furthermore, the placement of both the existing and proposed fuel stations does not create a coordinated or
intuitive service pattern along the corridor. Instead, it produces a disjointed system that encourages
inefficient and conflicting turning movements, particularly as traffic patterns shift following completion of
the extension. Rather than supporting a balanced distribution of access, the proposal concentrates activity at

a single, constrained node, amplifying congestion instead of alleviating it.

Because this is a conditional use, approval is not automatic. The movant must prove that there are no
alternatives to overcome the foreseeable hardships that the development will cause. Because there are no
foreseeable cures the hardship the approval should not be granted. The movant is unable to clearly
demonstrate that the proposed development will not adversely affect surrounding infrastructure or public
safety. That standard has not been met. In fact, the opposite is evident: the proposal introduces additional
turning conflicts, concentrates traffic demand at a known bottleneck, and exacerbates conditions that cannot

be physically improved.

Approving this request would also set a concerning precedent, signaling that high-intensity, traffic-
generating uses may be placed at constrained intersections despite clear limitations and foreseeable negative

impacts. Conditional use standards exist specifically to prevent this type of outcome.

This is not simply a matter of preference or proximity, it is a matter of system performance, safety, and
responsible planning, The anticipated impacts are not speculative; they are the logical and predictable result
of introducing a high-turnover use at a location that cannot support it. For these reasons, the proposed
development fails to meet the criteria for conditional use approval and should he denied.

Thank you,

Stephen W. Dumnmer |

%M a M. L@,WM
eneva M. Dummer

415 De Jean Cove
Biloxi, Mississippi, 39531




Dear Members of the Bilox! Planning Commission,

The Anatole Bay Homeowners’ Association, representing owners and residents of 60
townhomes in Biloxi, MS, is writing to express strong and unequivocal opposition to the
proposed construction of a convenience store with gasoline sales at the intersection of Atkinson

Road and Popps Ferry Road in Biloxi, Mississippi (case# 26-022-PC).
The proposed site Is currently zoned as a Limited Business District.

Limited Business (LB} District is intended to:

s Accommodate primarily small-scale office uses (professional, administrative, general
office)

s Allow limited smali-scale retail and service uses

+ Permit certain institutional uses {e.g., churches, schools, daycares)
+  Allow medium-density residential uses
« Serve as a transition zone between:
o More intense commercial areas, and
o Nearby residential neighborhoods
The church and the eye clinic located nearby are consistent with this zoning.

The proposed rezoning of this parcel of land raises serious and legitimate concerns regarding
public safety, traffic congestion, neighborhood integrity, and the absence of any demonstrated

community need.
1. Significant Traffic and Safety Concerns

The intersection of Atkinson Road and Popps Ferry Road is already heavily travefed and presents
ongoing traffic management challenges with an average of 20,000 vehicles per day traveling this
route. The situation is further exacerbated by the frequent openings of the Popps Ferry
drawbridge {approximately 10 times daily), which routinely hait traffic flow for extended periods
{typically 10-20 minutes). These interruptions create substantial vehicle backups, erratic driving
behavior, and unsafe conditions for motorists attempting to navigate or avoid congestion. This
area has been cited as a major bottieneck.

Introducing a high-traffic commercial use such as a convenience store and gas station at this

location will inevitably increase turning movements, ingress and egress conflicts, and pedestrian

risks, Vehicles entering and exiting the site—particularly during peak hours or bridge openings—

will compound existing hazards and significantly increase the likelihood of acciden_ts.EGE:W%i_E.
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2. Proximity to Existing Residential Neighborhoods

This proposed development is incompatible with the surrounding residential character. Gas
stations and convenlence stores are intensive uses that generate continuous traffic, noise, light
poliution, and late-night activity. These impacts will directly diminish the quality of life, safety,

and property values of nearby residents.
3. Documented Public Safety Concerns in the Immediate Area

There are weli-documented concerns regarding transient and vagrant activity underneath and
around the Popps Ferry bridge, including the already existing nearby convenience store at the
intersection of Pass Rd and Popps Ferry Rd. The introduction of another convenience store—
particularly one open extended hours—has the potential to further attract loitering and
undesirable activity. This raises legitimate concerns for crime, public safety, and increased

demand on local law enforcement resources.

4. Lack of Demonstrated Need

There is no clear public necessity for an additional convenience store or gas station at this
location. An existing convenience store with fuel services is located approximately 0.7 miles
away at the intersection of Pass Road and Popps Ferry Road. The proximity of this existing
business adequately serves the needs of the area. Approval of another similar use in such close
proximity would lead to unnecessary duplication, potential over-saturation, and avoidable

negative externalities without corresponding public benefit.
5. Failure to Meet Conditional Use Standards

Based on the concerns outlined above, the proposed development fails to meet fundamental
conditional use criteria typically required under zoning regulations, including:

+ Compatibility with surrounding land uses

s Protection of public health, safety, and welfare

+ Avoidance of undue traffic congestion and hazards
o Preservation of neighborhood character

Conclusion

For these reasons, we respectfully urge the Planning Commission to deny the conditional use
application for this project. The risks to public safety, traffic conditions, and neighborhood
stability are substantial and clearly outweigh any limited convenience the development might

offer.




Thank you for your time and careful consideration of this matter.

Sincerely,
Anatole Bay Homeowners' Association Board of Directors

495 Popps Ferry Rd

Biloxi, MS 39531

Carolyn Suarez, President

Dinah Jordan, Secretary/Treasurer
Sherry Roberts

Barbara Broome

Jason Campbell




T'o: Biloxi Planning Comimisslon, c/o Felicta Serpas, Senlor Planner

Re: Condltional Use Application - Convenlence Store with Gas Sales
Location: 416 Popp’s Ferry Road, Biloxl, Mississlppl 39531

Case No.: 26-022-PC

Hearing Date; April 2, 2025

Dear Ms. Serpas,

The proposed convenlence store with fuel service Is not appropriate at this location due to its direct, foreseeable, and adverse impact on traffic
operations, public safety, and overall corridor functionality. While fuel service within the corridor is currently distrlbuted In & manner that generally
accommodates both directions of travel {l.e. Clark Ol at northeast corner of Popp’s/Pass serving northbound traffic and Chevron at Pass/Beauvol
serving southbound traffic), the proposed development, when considered alongside the Popp's Ferry Road extenslon, will disrupt this balance ant
create an inefficlent and bncoordinated service pattern moving forwatd,

The extenslon of Popp's Ferry Road to Highway 90 represents a fundamental shift in how traffic wlif move through this corridor. This Is not a minoi
change; It redefines the primary north-south connection to the heach area. As a result, the existing fuef station at Beauvolr Road and Pass Road
while technically serving southbound traffic today, whil no longer function as an effectlve or loglcal service polnt for a significant portion of corrldol
asers, This change will not eliminate demand; it will relocate and concentrate it. As a result, the proposed focation along Popp's Ferry Road wil
=apture not only northbound traffie, but also a substantial share of southbound traffic that no longer passes through the Beauvoir/Pass intersection
This creates a predictabla and unavoldable convergence of trafic demand at a single signalized Intersection that Is already constralned and operating

inder existing congestion,

-uel stations are not passive land uses. They generate a high volume of short, frequent trips with continuous ingress and egress throughout the day
ntroducing this Intensity of turning movements at an already overburdened signal wifl degrade Its performance, In addition, the current Intersectior
Jesign refes on designated, Iimited-length turn lanes to manage vehicle stacking for movements onto Atkinson Road and Into the adjacent
ielghborhood, These Storage areas are already constralned, The Introduction of additional turning movements assoclated with the proposed fue
itation, particularly from southbound traffic, creates a high likelihood that vehicle queues wlll exceed avallable storage capacity. When this occurs
jueued vehlcles will extend beyond the designated turn lanes and spill back into the through lanes of Papp’s Ferry Road. This condition wouic
shstract through traffic, reduce overall roadway efficlency, and create a cascading delay effect along the corridor, As delays Increase, drivers wil
tivert through surrounding residential nelghborhoods to avold congestion, creating additlonal traffic, safety concerns, and disruption within the
1eighborhood. Given that no physical iImprovements are feasible to expand these storage areas, this represents a predictable and unmitigatec
yperational failure peint. Southbound vehicles will be required to make left turns across opposing traffic to access the slte, Increasing conflict points,
lelay, and the likellhood of queue stacking Into through lanes, These conditions are widely recognlzed as contributing factors to both operationa
nefficlency and elavated crash risk, Importantly, this Impact cannot be mitigated through typlcal means. There Is no feasible opportunity for roadway
videning, additional turh lanes, or other physical Improvements that would offset the added demand. As such, the burden Is not whether the
nterse ction can be adjusted to accommodate the use, but whether the use ltself is appropriate given known tonstraints. In this case, it Is not.

‘urthermore, the placement of both the existing and proposed fuel stations does not create a coordinated or intuitive service paftern along the
orridor, Instead, It produces a disjointed system that encourages Inefficlent and confiicting turning movements, particularly as traffic patterns shif
oliowing completion of the extenslon, Rather than supporting a balanced distribution of access, the proposal concentrates activity at a single,

onstralned node, amplifying congestion instead of afleviating It.

lecause this Is a conditlonal use, approval is not automatic and should not be granted unless it can be clearly demonstrated that the proposec
levelopraent will not adyersely affect surrounding Infrastructure or public safety. That standard has not been met. In fact, the opposite Is evident
he proposal introduces additional turning conflicts, concentrates traffic demand at a known bottleneck, and exacerbates conditions that cannot bt

:hyslcally Improved.

ipproving this request would also set a concerning precedent, signaling that high-intenslty, traffic-generating uses may be placed at constrainec
itersections despite clear limitations and foreseeable negative impacts, Condltional use standards exist specifically to prevent this type of outcome
his Is not simply a mattar of preference or proximity, It s a matter of system performance, safety, and responsible planning. The anticlpated impacts
te not speculative; they are the logical and predictable result of introducing a high-turnover use at a location that cannot support i, For these
easons, the proposed development falls to meet the criteria for conditional use approval and should he denled.

hank you for your conslieration, retind e
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To: Community Development Department Date; March 28, 2026

Planning Division (c/o Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner)
676 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr, Bivd.
Biloxi, MS 39530

Subject: Opposition to Proposed Convenience Store and Gas Station Near Residential Neighborhood

Dear Members of the Planning Commission,

As residents of the La Bonne Terre Subdivision, we are writing to express our opposition to the proposed
development of a convenience store and gas station in close proximity to our residential neighborhood. While we
understand the importance of economic development and access to services, this particular project raises several
significant concemns that we believe warrant careful reconsideration.

First, the introduction of a gas station and convenience store at the proposed location will increase traffic
congestion in an area already experiencing growth. Traffic volume is expected to rise further with the opening of
the road connecting directly to the Coast, Increased vehicle flow, delivery truck taffic, and frequent customer

turnover will pose safety risks for nearby residents,
Second, the proposed development will negatively impact the character and quality of life within our

neighborhood. Residents have chosen this area for its quiet, residential nature, A convenience store operating
extended hours, potentially late into the night, will introduce noise, light pollution, and increased activity that is

inconsistent with the surrounding environment.

Additionally, there are environmental and public health considerations that should not be overlooked, Gas
stations carry inherent risks, including fuel spills, underground tank leaks, and increased air pollution from
vehicle emissions. These factors could have long-term consequences for both the environment and the well-

being of nearby residents,
Property values are also a concern. The placement of a commercial fuel station adjacent to residential homes
may deter potential buyers and reduce the desirability of the area, ultimately affecting homeowners’ investnents.

Finally, there is the question of necessity. Similar services are already readily available, and the need for an
additional convenience store and gas station in such close proximity to homes should be carefully evaluated.
Development should align not only with economic goals but also with the best interests of the community it

impacts.

For these reasons, we respectfully urge the Planning Commission to deny approval of this project, or at a
minimunm, to explore alternative locations away from our neighborhood that are better suited for this type of

development and less disruptive to established residential areas.

Thank you for your time and consideration of community input on this important mattet.

‘ﬁ’ M‘h:‘,% ; J— ¥ 41 X ‘
7 7 LS 7
Ed Humphreys %’ Sue’Humphreys {

440 Carmargue Lane, Biloxi. MS 39531
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March 28, 2026

Community Development Department

Pianning Division (Aftn: Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner)
876 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Bivd,

Biloxi, MS 39530

Rea: Objection fo Proposed Convenience Store and Gas Station Deveiopment

Dear Planning Commission Members,

I am writing on behalf of residents of the La Bonne Terre Subdivision to formally oppose the proposed
construction of a convenience store and gas station near our neighborhood. While we recognize the value of
economic growth, this project presents concerns that we believe outweigh its potential benefits in this location,

The most immediate issue is increased traffic. The proposed site is already experiencing rising congestion, and
future roadway connections to the Coast are expécted to intensify this trend. Adding a high-turnover business
such as a gas station would significantly increase vehicle flow, including large delivery trucks, creating

heightened safety risks for residents, pedestrians, and families in the area.

Equally important is the impact on neighborhood character. La Bonne Terre is a residential community valued for
its quiet environment and quality of life, A commercial operation with extended or late-night hours would
introduce noise, lighting, and activity inconsistent with the existing surroundings, diminishing the peaceful nature

residents expect and rely upon.

There are also environmental and health considerations associated with fuel stations. Risks such as
underground tank leaks, fuel spills, and increased emissions could have lasting effects on both the local
environment and the well-being of nearby residents. These concems are particularly significant given the close

proximity to homes,

In addition, property values can be adversely affected. The presence of a gas station adjacent to residential
properties can reduce market appeal and deter prospective buyers, ultimately impacting homeowners’

investments and financial stability.

Finally, the necessity of this development is unclear. Similar services are aiready available within a reasonable
distance, and the addition of another convenience store and gas station does not appear to meet a critical unmet
need. Development decisions should carefully balance economic interests with the long-term welfare of the

surrounding commtmnity.

For these reasons, we respectfully request that the Planning Commission deny approval of this proposal or
consider relocating it o a more appropriate commercial area where it will have less impact on residential

neighborhoods.
Thank you for your fime and thoughtful consideration.

Sincerely,

444 Carmargue Lane

Biloxi, MS 39531 ECEIVE
APR 0 1 2026
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To: Blloxi Planning Commission

¢/o Fellcla Serpas, Senlor Planner

Re: Condltlonal Use Appllcation - Convenlence Store with Gas Sales
Location: 416 Popp's Ferry Road, Biloxl, Misslssippl 39531

Case No.: 26-022-PC

Hearlng Date: Aprll 2, 2026

Dear Ms, Serpas:

{ am writing as a resident and teacher at Popp's Ferry Elementary School to express my concerns regarding the
proposed convenlence store with gas pumps at the intersection of Popp's Ferry Road and Atkinson Road.

One of my primary concerns is the impact this development could have on safety for children in the area. The nearby
neighborhood of Popp's Ferry Place is made up of families whose chifdren regularly walk to and from Popp's Ferry
Elemnentary School. In additlon, children In surrounding nelghborhoods, Including my own located just west of the
proposed site {La BonneTerre}, are often cutslide walking, biking, and playlng. These are qulet resldential streets that
were never intended to handle Increased traffic volumes,

iIf congestion worsens at the intersection, as expected with the addition of a gas station, drivers will begin looking for
ways around the delays. This will result in more vehicles cutting through nearby nelghborhoods, Including Popp's
Ferry Place and our own. Increased cut-through traffic in these areas ralses real safety concerns for children who

are walking to school, riding blkes, or simply playlng outside,

In addition to these neighborhood impacts, the intersection itself is already difficult to navigate, particularly during
peak traffic times. There are deslgnated turn lanes for vehicles turning onto Atkinson Road and Into the adjacent
nelghborhood, but these fanes are imited In length. it does not take much for traffic to extend beyond those areas,
With the added turning movements from a gas statlon, there Is a strong likelthood that traffic will spill back onto
Popp’s Ferry Road, blocking through traffic and creating signlificant delays,

With the extension of Popp's Ferry Road to Highway 90 nearing completion, traffic patterns In this area are expected
to change slgnificantly. Placing a high-traffic use like a gas statfon at this already constrained Intersection will only

add to those challenges rather than improve them,

This is not simply about adding another business, it is about how that business will affect the safety and dally lives
of the people who llve here. From a resident’s perspective, this location Is not appropriate for a use that wili
increase traffic, congestion, and safety risks In an area where chlidren and famliles are present every day.

For these reasons, | respectfully ask that the Planning Commission deny this request,

Thank you for your time and consideration,
p Manm&/va—-'
M?f R, —

Lacy Brown-Manners

Biloxi Resident and £ducation Professional, Popp’s Ferry Elementary School
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Community Development Director 676 Dr. Martin Luther King Jr. Blvd.
P.O. Box 508

Jerry Creel
Biloxi, Mississippl 39533
Office: 228.435.6280
Fax: 228.435.6188

L ¢ www.biloxi.ms.us
Biloxi
established 1699
To: Biloxi Planning Commission
From: Jerry Creel, Development Review Committee Chair
Date: March 27, 2026
Re: Ulhas Sawant (Owner)

Robert Heinrich with Heinrich & Associates, LLC (applicant)

Convenience store with gas
Parcel: 1110A-01-051.001
DRC Case No. 2026-012

The Development Review Committee (DRC) has reviewed the above-referenced project
and has authorized the applicant to apply to the Planning Commission and Biloxi City
Council for a Conditional Use to allow a convenience store with fuel.

The DRC will require further review and approval prior to permitting because of the nature
of this project. Building Permits shall be issued when construction documents are approved

by the Building Division.

Yours truly,

Jervy Creel
Jerry Creel, Chair

cc: file
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G COMMISSICH MEETING 1 CHATRMAN DELLFNGER:
EPRIL 21D, 2026 2 We're going to cell the Planning
COMUNITY CEVELORMENT, 3 Cormission reeting to orcer.
DR. MARTIN LUTHER KING JR. 4 we'll record the membars present:
€76 DR. MORTIN LUTHER KING JR. BOULEVERD, 5 Mr, Todaro, Ms. Magee, Mr. Stanovich, Mr. Pogard,
BILOXI, MiSSISSIPPI, [ Mr, Collier, Mr. Celahousey, Dr. Draady,
EEGIMNNING AT 2:00 P.M. 7 Mr. Carron, Mr. King, Mr. Poulos; and
8 myself, Mr. Dellenger,

PLANNTING COMMISSION MMBEERS PRESENT: 9 We also have Councilman Nail, Councilman
Cnarlie Fellenger, Crairman 10 Tisdale, Councilman Creel and Councilman Shosmeker
Ronnie Bogard
Kvle Carron 11 in the audience, as well as felicia Serpas, Senior
Acbert Collier
Steve Celahousey 12 Blanner; Jerry Creel, Director of Comrunity
Dr. Larry Craxdy
Joe King 13 Cevelopment: Caryle Lena, Planner; and Melissa
Cebora Magse
Jimmy Poulos 14 Rodolfich, our court reporter. Tnerasz Shelton is
John Snow

15 here irom Keesler as well.

David Stanovich
Michael Tedaro
16 S, LENA:
ALSO PRESENT:
17 She's right here,
Jerry Creel, Director of Community Development
Felicia Serpas, Senior Planner
Caryle Lena, Planner I
1o ward 1 19 Mr,

yne Gray, Councilrzn
d 4 20 roTent of preyer, please?

18 CHAIRMAN CELLENGER:

Delahousey, would you lead us in a

T

Mike Nail Councilman W
Jemie Creel, Councilman
Dr. Paul Tisdale, Counci
David Shosmaksr, Councilman Ward 7

22 CHAIRMAN DELLENG=R:

REPCRTED BY: 23 Please stand for the Pledge.
Malissa Burdire-Redolfich 2¢ Mr. Poulos, if yeu'd lead us in the
Simpson Burdine § Migues
25 Pledce
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C-0-N-T-E-N-T-§ 1 {Pledge of Allegiance.)
CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING(S) : PAGE: 2 CHAIRYAN CELLEN
26-015-£C 5 3 I would e to w2lcoze everybody here
NEW PUBLIC HEARING(S): 4 to the Plaaning Cormission meeting. It looks
26-01B-FC 11 5 we have a full house, so, you know, if we can,
26-019-F 20 & please turn tne cell phones off, put them on
2€-020-FC 20 7 silent. 2nd when you come to the podium, vou will
28-021-EC 20 ] have four minutes to spsak. »And plsase state vour
26-022-5C 32 S naere and address for the rescord when you come up
TREE HEARING(S) : 10 to the pedium and sign in to the podium when you
T=2-26-001 106 11 come up.
12 Has everyone had a chance to
13 Planning Cormussion nminutes from the last meeting?

14 MR. DELARHQUSEY:
15 Motion to approve.

1€ MR, BCGARD:

17 Second.

18 CHRIFMAN CELLENGER:

19 Motion by Mr. Delahousey to approve:
20 second by Mr. Pogard.

21 R1l trose in favor, please state by

22 saying "aye.™

23 {Unanirous vote.)
24 CHAIRMAEN DELIENGER:
& Motion carries.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130 Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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CEAIRMEN DELLENGZR: 1 use from you guys to let us move forward.
It's all on record 2 So 1 have -- I was abls to read scme of
2ny discussion? ! the stuff over here, some of the ccoments that
Trere reing no discussion, please vote 4 you've had on this project and I would like to
reising your hand 5 nold that back and listen and I would like ta
Mr. Todaro, Ms. Mages, Mr. Stanovich, 6 address those afterwards, if that's okay.
Mr. Ecgard, Mr. Collier, Mr. [elshousey, T But I've got @ -~ I'm sure y'gll have
Dr. Drawdy, Mr. @8¥ron, Mr. King, Mrz. Snow, 8 sezn the site plan, but wa've pat. He've got
Mr. Farker: aadmyseli, Mr. Dellenger. That 9 intersecticn as far
moticn carzies vranimously. 10 for a truck to coxe
That is geing to be for all three cases. 11 in from the north to come in sarly hcours of thre
That's going to be for Case Nurber 26-019-PC, Case 1z day. Thay do this. s is not during the day.
22z 26-020-PC and Case Hurbsr 26-021-EC. 13 This is -- no traffic is going to ke held up by 2
Tre next case on the agendz is Case 1c¢ gés truck to put in fuel.
Nutper 26-022-FC, Ulhas Szwant, owner, and Bobby 15 ¥le were asked to put this drive cut nere
Heinrich, acplicant, & request for a conditional 16 cnto Bertucci Drive so the truck could go cut this
use approval to authorize constructicn of & 17 wey ard come back arcund and have a smcoth way of
6, 700-sguars-foot plaze including a convenience 18 coming in and cut the property when they do their
store with gas sales with two additicnal tenznt 19 delivery.
parcel of land rezsuring 20 The building is back here in the corner.
v 1.31 acres, rore or lsss, presently 21 Yie two lease spaces that we would liks to
situated witnin &n 1B, Limited Eusiness, zone and 22 provide for this, Trers is zmple erount of
identified ds 416 Popp's Ferry Road. Tax Parcel 23 parking
11102-01-051.001. 2nd this case was zdvertissd on 2z ¥le -- 2ll these dark trees right there,
Mzrch 20th &nd March 27th. 25 these are a2ll live oak treas, and I've alreedy --
Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 588 3130 Simgson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
3¢ 33
1 me zrd the tree ledies
2 with that and wa're going to lsave those trees
3 aglone.
4 There's scrme water caks up in this ares
5 right thers. A lot of them are rotten. &nd if
[ you kngw anything ebcut & water ozk, they die from
7 the inside out, sc & lot of -- 2ll of thase will
MR E b= gons. 1 I
9 r=2n, they're just stimps.
10 But anyw~ay, all of this will mes:
nrich, if you could, piszase tell 11 everycthirg that the City of Biloxi reguires for
us whzt your plans are. 12 n
MR. HZINRICH: 13
Tnank y'zll for being here teday. 12
My nare is Bcbby Heinrich at 1806 23rd 15
Rvenue in Guliport. 16 I was asked to do & rendering. This is
I'm here to represent Mr. Sawznt on this 17 just @ real quick rendering. This nay not be the
've gone through DRC. W= 18 fingl prodict on the cutside, but it will be
¥e went through LRC twice and 19 either & stone or & brick feature. Tnis is not &
20 Buc-ees. And this is not -- you know, a big, huge
21 canvenience -- you kncw, it's 2 convenience store
22 with gas. That's what this is.
23 It's not -- I unde =nd there is scre
h 24 concerns about, you %nce, mor and all
co onal 25 that. This is & convenience for people going home

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130 Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130



L R R N N

T T I T S S St
L . T - = R R N T S Fr A

W@ s o Ut A B

RREBERANRBEERRERE LS EE

37

and leaving and going to work or whatever, so it's
going to be for that area, People are not going
to drive from somenhere else, you know, another
city to core to this convenience store. I rean,
it's for the community.

So, agaln, I would like to either answer
any of your questions that you might have for me
or I want to listen to the comments and then I can
address those afterwards.

CHAYRMAN DELLENGER:

How many pumps will you have thers?
MR. HEINRICH:

S0 on the drawing here, I've got --
there is six units, but you've got a pump on each
side, so it will he a total of 12 on -~ in the
front under our canopy.

CHAIRMAN DELIENGER:

How big of a canopy does that regquire?
MR. HEINRICH:

I've got them drawn right here. I don't
have a dimension.

CHATRMAN DELLENCER:
Okay,
MR, HEINRICH:
But it meets the gas company's

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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reguirements for those cars to flow in there. If
you look real clese, it —— this is 25 feet off the
sidewalk here, so you've got traffic going both
ways here. This is really wide right in here.
I've got that dimension, That's about 35 feet
from the edge of the canopy to this island right
here.

But the canopy will be drawn and
designed to where it will meet -- that comes from
the gas conpany,

Like I said, if y'all have any questions
about this, I will be happy to answer them.

HR, DELABOUSEY:

Felicia, would you pull up Google Earth?

So where -~ did you say there are going
to be three entrances in there?

MR, HETNRICH:

Yes, sir. We have one ccaing from the
north. This is north coming down.
iR. DEIAHOUSEY!:

Can you point them out on that? Just
don't touch the screen.

MR, HEINRICH:
Yep. Den't touch the screen. Okay.
So this being the north end of the

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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property, we have one entrance right here.
There's a live oak tree there and there's two
right here, 50 ocur entrance wil} come in here,
The truck will come in here.

Our puinps or tanks will be down in this
area, and then we've got an entrance golng out.
That's mainly for the truck to make circulation
and be able to maneuver in there. And so they’il
come out on Bartucei.

And then we have the other, you know,
for residents to come in, and there is another
drive right here. How, you know, I could get xid
of that drive if need be. We'll just use the
other drive for both -~ you know, for residents
and ~- or customers and the trucks,

DR. DRAWDY:

Could you move te the other side and
show us because we couldn’t see it?
MR, HEINRICH:

I'm sorry. I1'm sorry, So right here,
about where that pin is right there is the
entrance. The trucks will be coming in here.
I've got an entrance here -- it's way back from
this intersection -- for cars. o trucks, HNo

trucks will be entering. HNo service trucks or

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388 3130
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anything like that or delivery trucks will be
using that driveway. They will be using this one
and entering out on this one. And there i3 &
couple of live osk trees right in there that we're
going to protect.

MR, CARRCH:

Wil: southbound traffic be able to come
in on that entrance that's flagged right there?
MR, HEINRICH:

On what? I'm sorry.

Oxay. 50 you're going scuth here. So
they'il be able to go here, They can either turn
here and go in and they can go up here and go in,
There is actually a turning bay, a turning lane on
that side,

MR. CARRCH:

But right now, that's divided, though.
You've got pylons out there.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Yes, You can't turn left there. Going
south.

MR, HEIHRICH:

I don't think it goes down that far,
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

It goes all the way to the light.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR. HEINRICH:

But I'm talking back tc here where that
driveway is.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER!

Right. There is pylons in the -- in
Pepp's Ferry Road that go all the way down.

MR. COLLIER:

I think they end at the entrance to --
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

Into La Bonne Terre,

MR, COLLIER:

-- La Bonne Terre, I think., Is that ——
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Correct, but I don't think you can turn
left.

MR, HEIRRICH:

See this turning lane?
CHATRMAN DELLERGER:

That's going north.
MR, HEINRICH:

Right, But when you say you can't turn,
you're talking about this turning bay right here?
UNIDENTIFIED SPERKER:

¥here are the pylons, though, because
they're there?

Stmpaon Burdine & Migues 228 38833130
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UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

¥eah. The pyleons aren't there.
URIDENTIFIED SPEAKER;

Why are they removed?

MR. HEINRICH:

1 don't know.
MR, DELRAHOUSEY:

These Google Earth pictures are old,
They're several years old.

HR. HEINRICH:

I had it surveyed.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

There are pylons that go all the way --
I believe they go all the way down to the light,
1f I'm correct.

MS. SERPAS:

There's too many people talking at once.
THE COURT REPORTER:

There'a too many pecple talking.

M5, LENA:

You cannot talk over each other, You'wve
got to wait till you get to the podium, please.
MR. HEINRICH:

See how you have your turning areas

hare?

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 388 3130
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CHATIRMAN DELLENGER:

But I believe those pylons go all the

way to the light.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

That's an old picture.
MR, REINRICH:

S50 our entrance is between these trees
right here.
CHATRMAN DELIFNGER:

Ckay,

MR. DELAKOUSEY:

Mr. Belnrich, I have concerns for
traffic that's going south coming from acress the
bridge. If they want to turn into there, they are
not going to go to the intersection of Atkinson
Road. They are going to stop bafore that and try
to turn in.

And we have similar situvations, One
that comes to mind is at Pepp's Ferzy (sic) and
Big Lake Road where the Taco Sombrerc is, I live
in the subdivision behind there, and thay have the
same preblem when people turn in or wanting to
turn to go into Taco Scebrers and I want to turn
to go down Big Lake Recad and have to walt,
sometimes a long time to get to the intersection.

Simpson Durdine & Migues 228.388.3130

44

It seems like we're going to be creating
that same traffic quasmire here becausge, yoa know,
it's -~ they're not going to turn at the
intersection. They're going to want to turn
pefore they get to the intersection,

And everybody knows that Atkinson Road
right now is a de facte shortcut for Popp's Perry
Road and all the traffic that goes there, so you
have a lot of congestion, especially in the
rornings and the afterncon when you go by there,
That is a heavily congested area, and for peopie
to stop before they get to the interssction and
those that are wanting to turn, it's going to
bleck those that are wanting to turn cnto
Atkinson. 50 it seems to me like it's going to
cause a hardship on a lot of people that live in
that area.

MR, HEINRICH:

I'm not going to deny that there's a lot
of traffic going down through there, but that'a
why there's tha --

MR. CREEL:

Let me explain to the audience. We're
not trying to be rude about this, We have a court
reporter here that's trying to record everything

Skwgison Rurdine & Migues 223 3883130
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that’s said and if more than one person is talking
at a time, she has trouble picking that up, So
please -- everybody will get a chance to speak.

¥We just want to make sure that she gets
everything., Thank you.

MR, HETKRICH:

Bobby Heinrich, 1806 23rd Avenue.

T agree. There's plenty of traffic,
That's why we want to put a convenience store
there, but these are turning lanes. And they're
there for a reason and we discussed this, you
know, about traffic and all that., That's why we
moved the driveway and had one going out the other
way to the east, sc that there won't be any
blockage or anything like that. %o there is a
backed up turning lane there.

MR, CELAROUSEY:

There is a turning lane.
MR. CARRON:

That's one of my concerns thare because
you actually have a turning lane there now on the
west side of the road that goes toc the optical
place, so they're actuvally going to be trying to
cross two lanes of traffic to get into yeur

facility.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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MR, DELAHOUSEY:

There is a turning lane, but in my
opinion, the turning lare is there to allow people
to turn onte Atkinson Read, not before Atkinson
Road,

MR. CARRON:

I agree with you, Steve, but what I'm
taiking about on the west side of the road, there
is another turning lane like if you come off of
Atkinson Road that parallels fopp's Ferry Road so
you can go to the optical Place.

So if somebody is southbound and wants
to turn in and off of Fopp's Ferry Road, they're
going to have to cross two lanes of traffic to get
in there.

HR, HKEINRICH:

So that's cur north end. Okay? So
pecple are going to core in., If you're going to
stop, you're going to stop here., These folks are
going to go and they can get in this lane right
here and turn and go to Atkirson. This is a
turning lane.

S0 that's -~ I's not trying to argue.
I'm just saying that's -- there's provisions fer

that,
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MR, COLLIER:

All right. I see your entrance -- what
I'm not seeing is where is the entrance for the
development over here?

MR. HEINRICH:

That's what's way up here. That'a
somewhere up here.
MR. COLLIER:

Where? T mean, no, it's not., I can
guarantee you. I cross it every day., So you're
coming out there and it’s already difficuit for
them to come cut. 1If you look and see -- cokay.
MR. BEINRICH:

See La Benne Terre Drive?

R, COLLIER:

Yeah, it's right there.
MR. HEEINRICH:

Okay.

MR. COLLIER:

All right. Right here is where ~- lock
at this where the turm goes in, Okay? Back here
is the optical place.

MR, HEINRICH:
Right here is the eatrance onte our

property.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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MR. DEILAKOUSEY:

Bobby, can you point it out on that map
80 that we can all see what you're talking about?
Show us where the entrance to La Bonne Terre is.
MR, HEINRICH:

Zoom out a little bit wore, pleasa.

Here's La Bonne Terre right here. We're
up here where that pin is right there.

MR, COLLIER:

So where is your -- all right., What
we're looking abt now, where is your entrance going
inte your business right now?

MR, HEINRICH:

Right here where this pin is. 1It's not
down here,
MR, COLLIER:

Bll right. Sc if you do that -- just a
question,

MR, HEINRICH:

Yeah, yeah.
MR. COLLIER:

Those pilings, those littie yellow
pilings which I seem to be able to run over,
they're almoat to the entrance of Le Bonne Terre,

50 how are they going to turn left if those

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130
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pliings are there?
MR, HEINRICH;

Those sre little -- I mean, I think we
could work with the traffic department.
MR, COLLIER:

Well, that's where I'm at, What I'm
getting at is, have you spoken with the traffic
division, let's szay, you know -—-

MR. HEINRICH:

Everybody waa in there, yes, sir,
MR, COLLIER:

And nobody said anything?

MR, CARRON:

Apparently, we've got pylona on there
now for southbound traffic te get ento Atkinsen so
there is a place for them to pull into and not
back up traffic cn Popp's Ferry.

MR, HEINRICH:

Right. And that's to help people know
where thay are when they're trying to turn left or
right or whatever or go straight, but it's right
at the edge of where we're talking to turn in
right there, so there is room there tec turn in.
MR. DELRAHQUSEY:

Mr., Heinrich, where ia the -- to the

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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best of your knowledge, the nearest gas station,
convenlience store from that location?
MR, HEINRICH:

It's going to be at Popp’s Ferry Road.
MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Popp's Ferry and Pass Road?

MR, HEINRICH:

Yes, sir, I believe s0.
MR, DELRHOUSEY:

And we have a Chevron station at
Beauvoir and Pass -~ Chevron convenlence store at
Beauvolr and Pass, right?

MR, HEINRICH:

Yes, sir.
MR, DELAHOUSEY:

So do you really think there is a need
for another gas station and convenlence store?
HMR. HEINRICH:

I mean, I'm not trying to be rude
either, but that's the owner's preference to do
that, He bought the property tc put a convenience
store there, and he has done his due diligence.
He's done his marketing, and he feels like that's
a great place for this project.

MR, DELAHOUSEY:
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Even though, say, a half a mile there's
other gas stations and convenience stores?

Do you happen to know what type of gas
station is goimg -- he's proposing to put there?
MR. HEINRICH:

He hasn't decided that yet, no, sir.

We're going through conditional use.
This -- a gas station with a convenlence store is
allowed 1n this zéning, but it has to be —- we
have to go through conditional use.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Dr. Drawdy, you had a question.
DR, DRARDY:

Here's my suestion and you haven't
answered it yet.
MR. HEINRICH:

I*11 try.
DR, DRRWDY:

I'm trying to understand. You're coming
in off the bridge -- no, I don’t need this, 1
know what I'm doing, You're coming in off the
bridge and you're going to be turning left
crossing two lanes of traffic.

MR, HEINRICH:
Yes, sir.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 1883130
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CR. CRAHDY:

What -- because people are going to be
goirg north still. They never quit going north.
If they're going to cross those lanes, what have
you thought about with all those cars that want to
turn in there, two or three maybe, backing up all
that traffic again that's going north? What's
going to happen there?

To xe, it locks like what you've done ls
you've taken an existing problem right there and
now you've piled on top of it with another
existing problem by bringing this gas station in.

I'm not cpposed to development. I
believe in it, But the thing is, how can you
eliminate the first problem when you're going to
plle on a secornd prehlem?

MR, HEINRICH:

Weli, I mean, what if I did this -- I
nean, that was my -- I'm not a gas truck driver or
nothing like that, but what if you went to the
intersection, went ahead and stopped at the light
and took a left, came in back around the other way
and then exit to go north? You could do that,

DR, DRAWDY:
It's still going to cause additional

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228 3883130
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problems because people are going in and out of
the gas stationh all the time like this and then
that's going to slow traffic down. And if anybody
that lives in that particular area -- you don't
have to live there. You can just drive in there.
You can gsee it any time from about 3:00 £ill about
7100 or 8:00 at night. There is traffic backed up
sometimes almost to Pass Reoad.

MR. BEINRICH:

would it be any different if there is
any other business there? There's going to be
traffic.
bR, DRRWDY:

Yes.

HR. HEINRICH:

Su you can't say nothing can go there
because of traffic. I mean, that's the whole
point of that intersection.

DR. DRAWDY:

But there could be a lot of businesses
put in there that do not require that much traffic
moving in there all the time.

MR, HEINRICH:

wall, that's an early --

DR. DRAWDY:

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

54

It's just my thought.
MR. HEINRICH:

I know.

DR. DRAXDY:

Itts just my thought. I don't know much
about anything.
MR. HEINRICH:

But we can tie in -- we can tell that
peracn, who's ever making that delivery that could
be early in the morning. There is not going to ba
that kind of traffic there.

MR, CARRON:

One additional guestion, Bobby.
THE COURT REFPORTER!:

Mr. Carron, microphone. There's toco
much talking in the audience.
MR, CARRON:

Okay.

THE COURT REPORTER:
Thank vyou.
MR, CARRON:

One additional question. You menticned
trees very shortly there. Number 226, I believe,
is a 43~inch tree on the western side of the

property near the road, a rather large trea,
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MR. HEINRICH:

Show me that one,
FR. CARRON:

This is your diagrem,
MR. HEINRICH:

That's cur survey.
MR. CARRO:

Tree Number 226. When you look at it
aver here, it says it's a 43-inch tree.
MR. HEIRRICH:

I haven't leccated the --
THE COURT BREPCRTER:

You haven't located what? I can't hear
you,
¥S, SERPAS:

We can't hear you.
MR, HEINRICH:

The tree we're talking about at the
entrance up here is a 20-inch-diameter tree, not a
42. It may be in diaxeter, but -- or
circumference, but not diameter, It's a 20-inch
diameter tree.
MR. TODARG:

It would probably be best if you went
back to the microphone so she can pick you up.
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MR, HEINRICH:

Okay. I will,
MR. CARRON:

Al we can go by is what's on the
surveyer's --
MR, HEINRICH:

Well, somebody handwrote that. I don't
know who handwrote that.
MR, CARRON:

Well, I bandwrote that, but if you look
at the nuxber that surveyor wrote on there, that
is Tree Number 226, If you go over here and look
at Tree Number 226, it is a 43-inch live oak tree.

So my concern is, tha root structure on
those trees goea out to the canopy, so you would
be disrupting roots on that. So youtre going to
have to put impervious pavers or samething like
that in there to protect that trea.

MR. HEINRICH!:

80 we're here for a conditicnal use
approval. Okay? We will follow ail -- I
assured -- I don't recall the tree lady's name,
but we will follow those rules and guidelines.

That tree, it's -- I can take cut two or

three parking spaces to save tree roots if I
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neaded to right there. This is a conditional use
and we still have to go back through planning —
or the planning departrment to get all that
straight.

MR, CARRON:

I wnderstand it has to go back to the
[RC, and I have always -- I reaily don't agree
with us igndbring the trees in these type of
meetings. If you show it te me now, I know it way
up front what's going to happen.

8o I'm —- there is several more trees
that are impacted in here, so I'm just saying
that's a lot of impact on the trees there. 2And I
know y'all are trying to save some of them.

MR, HEINRICH:

Yea, sir.
MR, DETLAHOUSEY:

Mr, Chairman, I have a question for
Mr, Creel.

CHATRMAN PELLENGER:

Yes,

MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Jerry, are you aware of any time in the
near future about there being a long-term closure
of Popp's Ferry Bridge for a period of maybe like
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a thres-month closure of Popp's Ferry Bridge?
MR. CREEL:

I'm not aware of it no, sir.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Are there any other guestions for
Mr. Heinrich? BAre there any other questions?

If not, thank you, Mr. MHeinrich,
¥R. HEIMRICH:

Thank you.

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Is there anyone in the audience to speak
in faveor Lof the applicant’'s request? Anyone to
speak in favor?

{0 response.)

CHRIRMAN DELLENGER:

A1) right, 13 there anyone to speak in
opposition? .

Please core up one at a time and, again,
state your name and address for the recard,
You'll have four minutes to speak and please try
not to repeat everything the other person in front
of you said so that we don't have to hear the same
thing over and over and over.

MR. DELCAMBRE:
I will, Mr. Dellenger.
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My name Paul Delcambre, Jr. I live at
418 Babineaux Place, Biloxi.

And if you look at one of those
renderings, you'll see that's a —— my back steps
are about 250 feet from hig gas pumps,

Tike you said, I won't go over a lot of
the same things that a nurber of the wesbers of
the Comaissicn have asked.

One thing I noticed in the materials you
handed out, it says part of what -- the
responsibility and what you have to find in crder
to have -- grant a conditional use, And two of
the ones that caught my attention were that it's
compatible with the aeighborhood, and that sits on
a corner with -— to the west is a residential
area, To the southwest, another residential area,
To the south, another residential area and nothing
commercial, except two medical clinics, which are
tucked away in the trees in a quiet -- actually
very, you know, quiet -~ no one knows they're back
there, so I don't see nhow they can say that's
compatible with that neighborhood.

The second thing is that it maintains a
safe traffic flow, A lot of the questions dealt
with that.
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But scomething that no one mentioned and
the person that was presenting this said that they
can drop the gas at any time of the day, early,
late or whatever. Not far from there, as the crow
flies is the Biloxi Schools' bus barn and all the
buses for the City of Biloxi School District come
dovn Popp's Farry Road and come down Atkinscn Road
to go over tha Popp's Ferry Bridge to pick up
students and bring them twice a day in the
rornings, early in the mornings and in the
afterncons, and that creates -~ I mean, when there
is a line of buses, that creates traffic and
that's not qoing to be very compatible with a
truck at 6:00 in the morning dumping gas.

He said he never drove a tanker. I
never did either, but I drove a tractor-trailer
truck hauling seafood and I can tell you this:
Those tractors are about 44 feet -~ 40 to 44 feet.
Then you've got -~ the trailer is, and then you've
got the tractor on top of it, #go he's going to
take up about — somewhere between 55 and 60 feet
of space before he can turn irto the gas station
to go make the drop.

And then he's got to go out the other
side, make the turn and end up on Atkinson Road to
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come out, and Atkinsen is a very narrow two-lane
road that has probabiy been in need of widening
and work for years.

And s0 you're going {co be bringing that,
50 it's not just a matter of making a circle like
you would drive in a van. And so it's going to --
the traffic flow is really going to be disruptive.

He talks about the -- we talked about
the pylons that are there. Those go down pretty
close to the entrance to La Boone Terre and I know
because that's the way I come in and make a hard
left to go to the end of the cul-de-sac where I -~
you know, right behind where this is, And the --
at certain times of the day, I've sat there five
minutes walting to get acresa, and sc, you know,
it's going to be just that much worse now.

And the last thing is, when you say
compatible with the neighborhood, a number of you
in here remember there was a gas station just on
the east side of Beauvoir that had the -- a fatal
accident where there was a fire and explosien.
That was in a commercial zone. I don't want that
right behind my back door. I know it's rare, but
you've got gasoline in those underground storage
tanks and we've already had that happen once in
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the city.
M. COLLIER:

May I ask a question, please?
CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Yes.

MR. COLLIER:

You know, I'm conflicted about this
berause I've been here all my life, vou know.
Even when I started driving in the early '70s, I
used to pass by that corner and never understood
why it wasn't developed because it's a beautiful
piece of property.
MR, DELCAMBRE:

It is, -
MR, COLLIER:

And, of course, it isn't until you
look -- of course, 1 was living on the east end of
Bilexi, sc the traffic flow wasn't a problem,

That was before the new Popp's Ferry Bridge. Thia
was the Old Causeway.

My question is: Would you be conflicted
if this was just an office building because we're
talking about denger of the gas station, lLst's
say -- because that property has been -~ it breaks
my heart that beautiful piece of property has

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130

WO o~ W A W N e

e et o T T i v, =
S N = I T T T S P A e i

W@ - o W W R

L R I T v S s T S GG
T I O T V=T -~ T O I I SO AR v

63

never heen developed,

S0 I understand what you're saying and
I'm being respectful, but let's take the gas
station out of it. If somebody wanted to build an
office space there, would you still be against it?
MR. DELCAMBRE:

It doesn't matter whether I'm against it
or for it., Tt's zoned for that.

MR. COLLIER:

No, no. Forget zoning. Yeour perscnal
feelings?

MR, DELCAMBRE:

My person feeling, if it was something
that was built and designed and laid out like the
eye clinic and whatever else is in there, no. It
looks -~ thay lock like basically just large
residences, is what it is.

MR, COLLIFR:

That was my quastion because I think the
situation we're looking at here is -~ and I agree
with you, The traffic there is horrendous and
there have been many times we've almost had wrecks
trying to get peopie cut of lz Bonne Terre.

My situaticn is that I'm looking for

future development because we want to have
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development on that corner and what would be
acceptable, and I think this is for the whole
group to lcok and say, all right. We don't want a
gas station, but we don't want anything there.
Well, that's unfair to the - I'm just trying to
get your feeling away from the gas station.

¥hat -- in your personal opinion, would
an office space be good for you?

MR. DELCAMBRE:

Just what's there now, the same sort of
thing. And part of the reason is, if you will do
a traffic count on office buildings, office
camplexes and a traffic count on a convenience
store, you will find that there is a big
difference in the nutber of vehicles coming and
going,

MR. COLLIER:

So you answered my question. Thank you

for that.

MR, DELCAMPRE:
Thank you, Anyone else have a question?
(Ho response.}

CHAIKMAN DELLENGER!
Thank you, Mr, Delcarbre,

MR. DRELCAMBRR:
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Thank you,
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Anyone eise to speak in opposition?
MR. CRAST:

My name is Russall Craft., I reside at
2413 ©ld Bay Road.

I do feel like the character of this has
not changed to justify the conditional use jtems
requested by this owner, Ang¢ I know the piece of
property is already zoned for a limited business,
and we welcome busineases that would comply with
the existing zoning without these impractical
conditional use items.

And my property has been in our family
64 years, and we've watched many, you know, good
things and bad things happen on that corner. And
what Robert was talking about happened in the late
'80s. It was rezoned after Dorothy Brown, I
think, sold it to Mr, Bertucci., But that
particular corner was parcelled out to ~- it was
supposed to be a bank there. That was the initial
plan., And I believe Bob Carroll was a councilman.
1'm dating the story, but it never happened.

Fagt-forward and, you know, that's --
what we -~ you know, they're trying to put in

SimpsonBurdine & Migues 228 388.3130
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there is not acceptable, but if they would put
something, you know, ocorparable to what they have,
we would go along with it, But putting a
development like this in the middle of four
neighborhoods would not only destroy the character
of the neighberhood, it would make a bad situation
worse with vehicular traffic.

You've got to realize there is a new
upper elementary school going across the Bay.
You've got subdivisions going across the Bay, and
to the west of my house on 0ld Bay Road, you've
got Keesler Credit Union's world headquarters.
They haven't broken ground yet, hut it's coming
and it's making a bad situation worse with this
traffic.

So, you know, you're not only dealing
with the traffic, You're dealing with -- you
know, I'm in the oil businesa and youlre dealing
with -- those drivers, the gas trucks, they run
all night. Whenever they have to make their
delivery, they go do it, and the trash trucks,
too. And I know you're going to have the trash
trucks with the limited business that's there,
but, you know, I can deal with it.

But I go on record oppoesing this project
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and, you know, I hope that everybody champions our
cause, especially the supporters of Fepp's Ferry
Bridge because it's kind of, you know, in the
footprint of that, But that's all I have to say.
CHATRMAN DELIFKGER:

Thank you, Mr. Craft.

Anyone else to speak in oppositicn?
KS. JORDAN:

Thank you very much. My name is Dinah
Jordan. I reside at 495 Popp's Ferry Road, I'm
here to represent the 60 homecwners at Anatole
Bay.

We are in strong opposition of this
project., I trust that you received the letter
that we gent to you. We're not opposed to
development, of course, but we travel this road
every single day.

The bridge opens on the average of 14
times a day. At that time, each time it opens,
there's between a 10- and 20-minute delay of
traffic, and, you know, I say you -- scmetimes you
have a death wish trying to get home or away from
home during those times. We do not need any
additicnal impact there,

There is already a gas station. It's ,7

Simpson Bardine & Migues 228 3883130

68

miles from the current proposed, and I use that
gas station all the time. BAnd rarely when I pusp
gas am I not accosted by a -- you know, homeless
people or vagrants.

We already have a preblem. We've had
problems before underneath Foppts Ferry Bridge.
We've kind of got that alleviated right now, but
we all know that this type of business does
attract more vagrants and that kind of thing. 5o
we're concerned about our safety and our security.

One thing that has nct been mentiocned
hera today was the future, We know that once
Fopp's Ferry goes all the way to %0, probably
talks will resume about the building of a new
bridge at some point.

It's my understanding that on the
website that -~ for the future bridge that
Atkinson Road is supposed to be used as an access
road for Anatole Bay and La Bonne Terre and even
access ramps were going to be used in that area,
so I can't even imagine the environmental
consequences of having a gas station there already
3o just that's something to think about as well.

But we are really concerned about the
safety of our community. We nave a lot of
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walkers, too, that walk early in the morning, late
at night, that kind of thing. S50 we would ask you
just strongly -- we strongly recommend that you
deny this request. Thank you so much.
CHAIRMAEN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Ms. Jordan.
MR. BERTUCCI:

My name is Emile Bertuccl, and I'm here
on the behalf of Tri-County Eye €linic and Fopp's
Ferry Outpatient Surgery Center, I'm here with
Dr. Bertucel, who's the owner.

Many of things that have been said, I'm
going to try not to repeat. But after 20 years of
managing the eye clinic and the surgery center on
Popp's Ferry Road, the number of accidents that
happen at this intersection I believe make this
intersection one of the most dangerous in Biloxi,
Every two weeks, I mean, there were major
accidents at that intersection and that's why
those yellow poles, I believe, are there. And,
hopefully, they work because I haven't seen as
many as we've seen.

But what 1s of grave concern is -- and
also, I wanted you all to know that, you know, not

only is this a problem intersecticn. We're an eye
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clinic. The people that come to cur place can't
see in the first place. We're doing the best we
can to inprove their visicn, but many of them
leave after they're dilated and they can't sae.
I'm just going to warn everybody, you know.

So in addition to that, we de about
1,500 surgeries and we have asmbulance and pecple
that are in a state that they need easy ingreas
and egress, And this -- listen, we're all for
growth and production in the community, but I
don't believe that the proposed program fits the
limited business zoning. I believe it's more of a
comrercial buginegs, is what it looks like.

The biggest concern is that Popp's
Ferry ~- many of us here know this, that Popp's
Ferry Road 1is one of the few north-south
evacuation corridors in this comwunity.

And they have a gas station and those
trucks right there not only creates a problem for
wir patients and the coamunity, which is highly
trafficked -- I don't need to tell anybody in
nere. If they live here, they already know.

Qur concern is also the hours and that
this type of project -~ although, we're all in
favor of vommunity development, I just den't
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believe that this type of a program with the fuel,
the hazard -~ let's remove the hazard because 1
think scmebody mentioned what happens if you just
remove that? The convenience store, the amount of
traffic and the amount of turning in that one
spot =~ and I have no idea why it's that bad
because I'm not a road engineer, but I can tell
you the amount of accidents, even with those poles
sitting cut there and trying to cross those roads
because Atkinson Road and Papp's Ferry Road are so
heavily trafficked, Keesler, the parks, the
schools.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

The Va.
KR, BERTUCCI:

Beg your pardon?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:

The VA.
HR. BERTUCCI:

What's that?
UNIDENTIFIED SPRAKER:

The VA.
*R. BERTUCCI:

The VA, tha schools, the school buses,
the handicapped --
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UNIDENTIFIED SPERKER:

The problem 15 whenh you get stopped.
MR. BERTUCCI:

Well, listen, I think we've made it --
plenty people have said, you know, pretty much
what the problems are. We're concerned. We
certainly love to see development, but I don't
believe that elither the convenience store or the
gas station -~ and I can say this as it exits ontc
thoge -- Bertuccl Bouleward or onto Atkinson
Boad -- are so swall. There is no way you're
going to get a gas truck in there that I can see.

And we're just concerned. We would like
to see sowething else and we just stand in
opposition of what's being proposed at this peint,
CHAIRMAMN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Mr. Bertucei,

MR, BERTUCCIH

Thank you.
HS, MANNERS:

Hello, My name is Kristen Manners, and
I live at 2489 Castille Place in La Bonne Terre.

1 am the director of valuation for a
national commercial real estate appraisal and
advisory firm, so I'm very well versed in
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development and typea of advisory and consulting
for these exact types of projects.

And I strongly oppose this proposal due
to safety, traffic and planning concerns. Fuel
stations are not passive land uses.

The extension of Popp's Ferry Road to
Highway 80 represents a fundamental shift in how
traffic will move through this corridor. I don't
think a whole lot of people have touched on this
today.

This isn't a minor change, It redafines
the primary north-south connection to the beach
area. Bs & result, the existing gas station at
Beauvoir and Pass Road, which is, I believe, a
Chevron station, will technicaily -- you know,
that serves the scuthbound traffic teday. All the
other gas stations serve northbound traffic or
wastbound traffic along Pass Road,

X That will no longer Serve as a
functional or effective service point for a
significant portion of the corridor users. Change
won't elimirate the demand. It's only going to
relocate it and concentrate it. The same amount
of people are going to have to use gas stations,
As a result, the proposed gas station aleng Fopp's
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Ferry will capture not only northbound traffic but
a substantial share of the southbound traffic,
which is, I believe, what everybody else has been
speaking about today, turning left across two
lanes of traffic trying to get into a gas atation.
You know, all that does is create a predictable
and unavoldable convergence of traffic demand at a
single signalized intersection. That intersectien
is already constrained. It's already congested.

when that congestion increases at that
intersection, drivers are going te divert through
nearby neighborheods like La Bonne Terre, like
Popp's Ferry Place that's right there. They
already cut through these neighborhoods as it is.
We see people cutting through, going 40, 50 miles
an hour so that they can skirt, you know, traffic
lights and things like that., That shifts traffic
risks from 3 main road into residential areas
where people live.

The site is adjacert to neighborhoods
where kids are walking, They bike. They play
cutside regularly and with —— increased traffic
and cut-through puts those kids directly at risk.
This includes kids walking to and fram Popp's
Ferry Road -~ Popp's Ferry Elementary School
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bacause some of these kids are walkers, And if we
have got cars trying te skirt traffic going
through nelghborhoods, that just puts more kids at
risk,

The intersection already struggles,
especially during peak times, and a gas station
introduces constant traffic, This is not
something like an office building or a bank or
anything like that.

Te answer your question that you asked
earlier, I wouid be happy for an office building,
a medical office building. Any other type of use
that doesn't create that much traffic demand would
ba very welcowed. I think a lot of people would
agree with that, you know, but a gas station
creates a lot of traffic,

The turn lanes already exceed capacity
somatimes with queves spilling over. Imagine
safety vehicles and rescue vehicles when they
can't get through. That's going to create that
much more of a problem because there's nowhere for
them to go. If they get stuck, where are they
going to go? And then we're going to see
increased, you know, response times and things

like that,
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Conditional use requires no adverse
impact to safety or infrastructure and, here, the
impacts are predictable, They're negative.
They're unmitigated and the standard is not
clearly met.

Approving this would signal that
high-trafficked uses can be placed at already
constrained Intersections, which undermines the
purpose of conditional use raview entirely. Thank
you,

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Ms. Manpers.
MR, DELAHOUSEY:

Mr. Chairman, could I ask her question
even though her time 1s up?
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Yes.

MR. DELDROUSEY:
Ms, Manners, do you know, is there an
HOA in La Bonne Terre?
M5, MANNERS:
Yes, there is.
MR. DELAHQUSEY:
Ang we don't normally have to -~ we

don't have tec abide by anything that the HOA does,
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but. has anyone that is proposing this developrent
asked for a meeting with the HOR, to your
knowledge, to discuss the pros and consz of this
development?

M5, MBNHERS:

I do believe that that has been
discussed within our neighborhood and I think that
is coming up for review at the next HOA meeting
from what my understanding is, yes.

And to be clear, you know, there are a
lot of people from La Bonne Terre in the audience
right here now, and I have spoken to several,
probably 20 to 30 of our residents in La Bonne
Terre over the past week or so, and T can't teil
you one persen that is in favor of this. It has
213 been in opposition.

MR. DELAHOUSEY:
What abcut Anatole Bay? Do y'all have
an HOA?
UNIDENTIFIED SPERKER:
Yes.
MR. DELAHOUSEY:
And?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:
.We're opposed, Unanimously opposed.
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IS, MBITNERS:

Any other questions?

{Ho response.)
1S, MARNERS:

Thanks,

CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you.
MR, PRINE:

My name ia a Donald Prine. I also live
at Rnatole Bay, at 495.

But things that have not been discussed
and they haven't been realized is where this is
located is -- I've been to two deals for the
bridge, for Popp's Ferry Bridge., Every one says
it's coming down Rtkinscn, so you're going to take
Popp's Ferry Bridge totally off, Anatole Bay is
taken totally off. La Bonre Terre is taken off.

We have to go through the boulevard
right here, Bertucci Boulevard, Bertucci has
alresdy offered to donste land for the turning
lare to go north, so the only accesa that any
residences will have will be down the boulevard
because they're still slotted,

You've got 111 single-families for the

townhomes for the Bertucci subdivision, We have
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114 La Renne Terre houses. We'lve got 30
un-vacated units for Pnatole Bay, so that's going
to give two vehicles per house, 630 vehicles a day
alore caming down Bertucci Boulevard because
they've already told ua we're getting -- we're
going to have to go under the bridge there. So
that means whatever business is here, they've got
to worry about three subdivisions and all of the
traffic there.

Business is great, yeah, but the only
access we're going to have for years is going te
be Bertucci Boulevard, so we can take out
Atkinson, take out Popp's Ferry. The only access
wa'll have for anything there will be Bertucci
Boulevard. That's all the plans the City has
because I have got it right bhere in y'all's
Decexber -~ Janvary 3lst. Bertucci already said
he would donate the land, as is intended, to
provide turn lanes to ease traffic congestion at
the intersection of Atkinson Road and Popp’s
Ferry, particularly in peak hours,

That's all that I've got to say.
CHATRMAN DELLENGER;:

Thank you, Mr. Prine.

148, STEPHENS:

SimpsonBurdine & Migues 228 3883130
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My nare is Deanne Stephens, and I live
down the road at 2109 George Walton Drive.

And if you're not familiar with the
area, it's about three quarters of a mile to the
east of the intersection that we're talking about.
And (eorge Walton parallels Atkimson, so there is
Woodland Park, Tree Top, and that's right after
Melissa and Melinda (sic), so if you're familiar
with that area, you know where I am.

A couple of things that have not been
brought up -~ I could repeat everything, but I
won't. I'm terribly opposed to this.

On Sunday mornings when the church is in
sassion for all of its services, traffic is so
heavy through there that they actually have to
have police that let the people out of the church
and stop traffic on Popp's Ferry Road. So that's
on a Sunday morning that is supposed to be a quiet
time, and there ia already buildup with traffic.

Ro one has mentioned that just down the
road on Atkinsor is a home for elder care and all
hours of the night -~ thank goodness, they have
the care, but there are avbulances that are caming
and going. And, also, sometimes the people fram
the elder care facility, they come out and they

Simpson Burdine & Migues 223.3882110
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take walks down the sidewalk and they are out.

So children have been mentioned. We
also need to mention that population.

e also need to mention the fact, again,
if you will indulge me, that this fsnot a - if I
may use the term, "a legal development." This
takes conditional use, and the conditional use of
this is so hazardous for that neighborhood. Let
alone when you pull back, the only businesses you
see is Dr. Bartucei, and if you want to count the
church, you know, you may. But that is a
residential area, and you're going to be putting
in a convenience store.

1'm not opposed to drinking, but are
liquors going to be sold there? 1Is beer going to
be sold there? I don't know. What is going to
happen? Tf you go down to any convenience store
at any tine of the night, there are people, and
the safety issue has been brought up,

So it's just not a location —- put a
nice retail store there, put & cute little coffee
shop that sells sandwiches that people can walk
to, but this is not what that lot, that keautiful
piece of property was meant for, to have a

convenience store. And 12 gas pumps is a lot of
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gas pumps, folks. That's not a small gas station,
Thank you very much.
CHATRMAN DELTENGER:
Thank you, Ms, Stephens.
MS. SOWELL:

Good afternocon., Adeline Sowell, and I
live at 409 Jordan Drivae, which is right off of
Atkinson Road. So I live off Atkinscn and
probably abcut a three-minute walk of where this
gaa station is supposed to be built.

Everybody has made amazing points, I
had them all written out on my nice little
typed-out sheet so I don't have to make most of
them, but the one thing I didn't really hear
anybody talk about was talking about our
neighborhood livability and our property values.
And everybody knows that most people do not look
to huy a residential home right by a convenience
store or a gas station retail area, and I'm
concerned about that.

I mean, because the reality is -~ and I
think Mr. Craft said he had been living in this
neighborhood over 40 years. Many of those hemes
have, you know, generational families and we hope

te continue to have those generational families,
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but people are not going to stay in an area or buy
in an area where they feel like there's going to
be an increase in safety issuves, crime,
homelessness, you know, right at their backdoor.
And I'm pretty sure this is not samething most
people would want in their backdoor, as one
gentleman mentioned.

The other thing, too, I want to say
apout that read -- and this lady that just
mentioned all the arbulances that come, I hear
them all osaing in and out 311 the time. There
are also several residents that live in the
neighborhood with special needs and their
caregivers, and so this also would endanger those
people who need to alse have access to care, not
just the nuraing home and the iwo retirement
communities that are also right there on that
street.

Atkinzon Read is extremely busy already.
Tt's —-- you know, drive-through traffic for people
who don't live in the neighborhood and itts
already a concern.

So this is just a huge chokehold and I
strongly, strongly oppose it being put there, I'm
not opposed -~ 1 would love a retail store, a
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coffee shop there, That would be awesome and
right now, the two -- there is the eye clinic and
also the dental place. You doa't see them,
Unless youfre going there, you don't even notice
that they're there and that's really how it should
be, It should blend in with that community
because it Is a residential neighborhood, Thank
you.
CHAIRYAN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Ms. Sowell.

Anyone else to speak in opposition?
KR. LANKEORD:

Good afternoon. My name is Jarvis
Lankford and I live at 2418 Old Bay Road,

A couple of things I would just like to
point cut in the presentation that you've seen —-
and T won't go over all the other stuff, make you
listen to it again, but may I approach your map?
CHAIRMAN [ELLENGER:

Yes,

MR. LANKFORD:

Ckay. 1 just wanted to point out a
couple of things.

Az all of you are aware, there is a
developrent going in here, right, a residential --

Simpson Burdire & Migwes 228 3883130
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everybody is aware of that., 8o if you take -- you
imagine that being there and you -- just a visual
lock at the map, you know, a large gas station
right here just doesn't make sense anyway, just on
a visual part.

Sare of the cother things I wanted to
rention was -- with all the other things that were
talked about, is what I call -- have to call light
pollution because as you know, when you have
sorething very bright, which your gas station is
1it up like the sun, you can see it for blocks.
And when' you're close -- closer —- and I consider
myself closer, 2418, that's already going to he a
problem because we already have high lighting that
we don‘t like anyway with the new lighting that
was done on Old Bay Road.

Just somsthing else I want to point out
ks, if you'll notice in the bottom left-hand
corner of that photo, 1985, T believe that's the
year, because I locked at Gocgle Maps for a long
time, so that may or may not be accurate. Okay?
Kow, I krow that the photo of the street where
they showed no cones, that's actually highly
un-accurate.

Most of you guys have driven it. You
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know, we all drive up and down Popp's Ferry Read
and it locks like, you know, a yellow maze right
there 311 the way up to the east entrance to

La Bonne Terre. So I don’t see how a truck could
come out, turn out onto Bertucci Boulevard, which
is not bullt for a heavy i8-wheeler truck, I'm
sure. It's narrcw. I don't know how they're
going to ingress and egress right in there, but
that's sceething else to point out with everything
else.

How, he spcke about the trees and he
pointed out that the water caks -- oh, thay're
going to die. Welk the property, go out there and
take a couple of minutes to look around. Those
are nealthy trees. 1 think everybody would agrea
that those trees are beautiful out there. I don't
see any evidence of any trees dying on that
corner, I drove around it just to get a really
good feel, you know.

I've been in real estate for about
14 years, and I think it was touched on about
property values. I estimated -- I did a look at
it and I am not an appraiser, okay, but 1've gone
to many, many appraisal schools for my line of

work, 1 try to stay current.
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But I'm estimating 15 to 30 percent
reduction in property values depending on the
distance and the settings, which way your house is
facing, how far away you are, things like that,
That's pretty significant, so I just wanted to
point those things out and I stand in opposition
of this, Thank you very much,

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Mr. Iankford.

Anyone else to speak in opposition?
MS. BROQME:

Yes., My name is Barbara Broome and T
liva at 495 Fopp's Ferry. I'm part of Anatole
Bay.

what ¥ haven't heard anybody mention is
the fact that all the kids walk to the bus at the
corner off la Bonne Terre's entrance, That's
where they catch the bus, so you've got all thase
kids walking through that area in the morning and
in the afterncon when the bus lets off. You're
going to put increased traffic in there and more
people. So you're putting them at risk too,
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Ms. Broome.

hnyone else?

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.3883130
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¥S. MILLER:

lello, Good evening, Good afterncomn.
It's feeling like evening. My name is Tracy
Miller,

I have two special interests in this. I
live on Old Bay Road, but that's not why I'm here
today.

I'm here because I'm with McMurphy
Pediatric Dentistry. We have purchased the
property adjacent tc Brice McMurphy, so0 you'va got
¥McMurphy Orthodontics and you're going to have
MoMurphy Pediatrics next door to it.

If he puts an entrance to the back of
this property on an already narrow drive with
children, you know, children and orthodontics -~
and we're strictly a pediatric dental practice --
I'tm very concerned about the traffic cutting
through and what's golng tc happen there.

And, also, it's nlce to hear that
everybody is in support of a medical facility
because we're going to make it lock really nice
through there really scon. That's all the time I
need, Thank you.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:
Thank you, Ms. Miller,

Simpson Burdine & Migues 2283883130
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DR, BERTUCCI

Greg Bertucci. May I speak from here?
CHAIREAN DELLENGER;

Sure. State your name and address.
DR. BERTUCCI:

Greg Bertucci, May I speak from here?
Can you hear ma?

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Yes.

DR, BERTUCCI:

Is it all right with you a311?

I bought this property back in 1986,
It's about 50 acres, We still own sbout 47. We
have planted those trees that are on that lot. I
did.

He've spent these years filling
watliands, mitigating and filling and trying to
create a very special place. Many people walk
through it. They're welcome teo do it. You a1l
are welcome to cowe and walk out there. We're
interested in the waterfront being open. We're
trying to put some sort of a park there.

The problem with the Anatole Bay
entrance and egress is very true. That bridge
will come at some point, 1 don't know if it will
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be in my li.fetime. but it will be there. BAnd we
are interested in helping solve your problem, but
ag you come -+ we've got an entrance that goes
across to Bnatole Bay, but that does not have to
coxne down Bertuceci Boulevard. It can go further
to the east. We can make it bigger because I'm
concerned about what you're concerned about.

‘The new bridge, if we can turn the --
maybe sideways so we can have this view,

IMR. CRRRON:

It's at the top.
DR. BERTUCCT:

The new bridge is going to come down
right about here and that's going to ¢lose off the
road to La Bonne Terre and it's golng to -- this
is going to be the only way out and there may be a
way to get from La Bonne Terre to there, but these
people will have to come that way, But we're --
welve got this -~ okay, If you want to see the
whole thing, this is where we live.

¥We're interested in putting some sort of
a pool area, maybe a very small hotel, but a pool
area for the area and this will be open to the
publie,

We have a little problem with an
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srcheological piece over here that's preventing us
from doing anything, but, of course, we will
present anything to the Council wher we make that
decision. And we're looking at funds and that
sort of thing, But I'm going to be 78 years old,
50 I'm sort of easing out,

I do want to talk a llttle bit about cur
facility, which is right here. We have about ——
almost $2 million in Jasers. We have four
different lasers we use to do our cataract
operations, Sometimes we'll do 50 a wesk., We're
prepared to be able to do that if we need to.

We try to be very good neighbors. We've
never caused a real problem. We are interested in
everything being green, and we're ipterested in
also supperting the orthedontics and the new
pediatrics clinic. We have a lot of patients who
just walk to our office, and we see them and take
care of them the best we can,

S0 we're conmitted to that. We're
commdtted to the City of Biloxi. I go way back.
As a child, I was at the FEdgewater Gulf Hotel with
my parents, We were at the Broadwater Beach.
We're excited about having this piece. We want it
te be special. We know that the Broadwater
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property -~ and we are trying to work with them in
same goordinated thing.

and ae far as getting ingress and
egress, we have a lot of property and we should be
able to get that taken care of if you all have
something that you want to talk to us about.

But the type of facility is potentially
toxic, It's a dangerous area when you talk about
gasoline and those sorts of things, We are doing
surgery on elderly peopls,

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Dr. Bertucci, I'm sorry. Your time is

up.
DR, BERTUCCI:

I'm sorry.
MR. TOBARO:

I have a question for Dr. Bertucci.

when the original presentaticn was given
years ago, wasn't the goal of this particular
corner to be a medical professional -~ that whole
gection where your office ig all the way to
Atkinson? Was that like the original goal?

DR. BERTUCCL:
There was a presentation made to you all

by some engineers to see what we could build, what
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would be possible, and there was a mixture of the
professional and comercial -- I mean, and
residential. Excuse me. So the resideatial part
is one, but the biggest thing that I'm interested
in is green.

I'm rnot interested in a bunch of
cendominiums, I'm not interested in that. I want
the people to be able to wakk and enjoy. That's
what I do, I live on a 47-acre park, I cut
grass. We have three diesel mowers, and so we go
and gather turtles, put them away and then we mow.

And 1 have been stopped several times by
people who say, do you own that land? And I go,
no. Are you Dr. Bertucei? I maid, yes. And you
don't known own that land? Well, who owns the
land? I said, a high-end bank owns the land, and
we all get a laugh about that. But it’s something
that we ~- tome, it's a special place and I want
that to be a special cammunity. Thank you,
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you, Dr., Bertucci.

Is there anyone €lse to speak in
opposition?

. There being no one else, Mr., Heinrich,

would you like to come up and discuss any of the
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issues we heard against this?
KR. HEINRICH:

Yeah. And I1'11 kesp it short here.
Bobby Heinrich, 1806 23rd Avenue in Gulfport,

Just going down to comment on some of
these and, hopefully, I can explain a little bit.

Again, everybody said, this is, you
know, a blg gas station, This is a convenience
store that is a 3,700 square foot. That's how big
the convenience store is with two rental spaces
there that can be whatever, whatever ia allewed in
that zoning. We don't -~ you know, that's just
for the -- my client to rent out to someone. So
the size of the buiiding and the parking that's
provided there is ample. I have said that,

So I want to talk about the trees, I
don't want to talk about -- most of it was about
traffic. I understand that. There is a lot of
traffic there. That's why this project needs to
be here. I*m sure that with townhomes and
whatever else is going to go around this place,
people are geing to walk to this store, I just -—-
I don't think anybody in this room is going to say
I will never walk in that store, I juat don't
believe that.

Simpson Burdine & Migues 228.388.3130

W@ - oy W R ke

MR ONON RN R e e e -
G & WSS Bbe danELRES

L= - T R N F

RS ORION OR R RY R b R e e g e e
L L = ' - T - T ¥ S N T X I Y

83

But anyway -~ so it's a
3, 700-zquare-foot convenlience store with gas.
That's what this project is.

We're not saying that we're -- if you've
got a church down the read, you've got to follaw
those guidelines to even try to get a liquor
license in that. I'm sure there will be beer in
there, but that's different from liquocr, sc -~
that's a convenience store. That's what they do.

We're not cutting any live oaks. If
y'2ll want to puil that -- 4f you did the street
vigw of that corner right there, you can see the
trees that I'm talking about. They're water oaks.
They're not a protected tree.

8o all those live caks that Dr, Bertuccl
was talking about, those are not leaving. I was
told -- and he and I have a rutual friend. Be
said, do not touch them trees. They were planted
by Dr. Bertucci. We're not planning -~ we’re not
touching those trees and we're going to protect
them. We're not geing to park over the roots or
anything,

But that back corner back there, so -
you sea a bunch of pine trees right there. Those

are not protected,
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Anyway, I think what -- I wanted to -~ I
locked up what those little plastic things are in
the middle of the road. These are called flexibie
traffic delineators. Okay? They just -~ the
definition is; To enhance road safety by
providing high-visibility guidance for traffic, so
they're there to help people bacause there's lines
and turning bays and all that kind of stuff. But
it's not like you can't -- you know, it's not
there for traffic not to take a left right there.
That's what it's for, for turning there.

But I'm assuming that these trucks will
come in from I-10. They may came in from
Highway 80. I don't know that. I'm not -- again,
I donft Know now that procedure works, but if they
had to come in and take a left at the light and go
down Atkinson and go dowm that way, then that's
what we'll de, If y'all tell us not to cross that
right there, that's -- I was asked to put that
driveway as far north as we could, which I did.

So, again, I've got trees, I've got
liquor. We're not doing liquor.

Mainly traffic here. It's a heawy
intersection, I understand that, but I think
anything you put there is going to have the sawe
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traffic. Bhgain, you're mot going to have people,
oh, I've got to go to that convenience store.
It's for whoaver is in that area right there, so
the traffic i going to be there regardless of
what you put there,

So I'll be happy to answer any rore
questions, T just wanted to touch on those few
things there,

MR, DELANOUSEY:

Hr. Heinrlch, in addition to the gas
station/convenience store, you said there is geing
to be same space for two additionzl businesses --
MR, HEINRICH:

Yes, sir.

MR, DELAHOUSEY:

-~ to be on property?

Do you have any speculation at this
point what those type businesses might be?

MR. HEINRICH:

I donot. It's like -- they'ra 1,500
square feet, 50 you can't — itfs prebably an
office or something like that. It could be
anything like that, It wouldn't be a restaurant
or anything like that,
¥R, DEIAHOUSEY:
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Sc in addition to the traffic that is
going to bes a facter from the gas
station/convenience --

MR, HEINRICH:

There's going to be traffic. I promise.
HR. DEIAHOUREY:

-- there is going to be additlonal
traffic for the other two potential businesses?
MR, HEINRICH:

Yes, sir. But you have -- I have the
parking for those two buildings. There's plenty
of parking on that site for-those businesses.
CHAIRMAN DELLENGER:

Mr. Heinrich, somebody had asked, what
would the hours of operation be? Wnat would they
be for the convenience store?

MR. HEINRICH:

We wrote on our write-up 5:00 te 11:00,
5:00 a.,m, to 11:00 at night.

CHATRMAN DELLENGER:

Thank you.

DR. DRAWDY:

Question,
CHATRMBN DELIENGER:

Dr. Drawdy.
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DR. DRARDY!

You've got a proposed gas statien or
convenience store that you want to put there.
Would your omner consider any cther type of opticn
for -- besides a convenience store or gas station
and putting it there?

MR, HEINRICH:

That's not what my client does. This is
what he does, convenience stores with a gas
station.

ER. DRAWDY:

He doesn't do anything besides this?
MR. HEINRICH:

That's it,

DR. DRAWDY:

I was just looking for -- most things
have to have a solution somewhere.
MR, HEINRICH:

Yeah.

DR, DRAHDY:

I was looking for solutions that may be
able to meet with what -~ the residents of this
area, also reduce the ammmt of cars that would be
going into a particular area and then trying to
come up with an idea. But if he deesn't do
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anything else, then that answers my question.
‘MR. HEINRICH:

The traffic is there. It's already
there. Okay? By listening to everyone, it's
already there, 5o turning in those -- the
question is, how is this truck going to turn in?
We can figure that cut, There's other options for
that, That was just the plan that I had on this,
And like 1 said, we can turn and go in off
Atkinson and come in and go back out to the north.

hnd then now I'm hearing there is
ancther exit out to the north one day. We don't
know when that's going to happen. But we have
three driveways going in and out of this property,
50 that will eliminate a lot of traffic congestion
just by that just for our project. HNow, itls
going to help out all the other traffic coming in
from I-10 and coming fram the south and
everything, Tt's already there,

So I'm certaln that these trucks can
core in ak an early hour, you khow, to deliver
gas, Now, you're going to have other dellvery
trucks that provide, you know, supplies to the
store, but, you know, that's in any store. But
anyway, I will be happy to answer anything else.
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CHATRMAN DELLENGER;

Is there any other questions from the
Comrmission?

There being none, we'll consider that
hearing closed,

FR. HEINRICH:

Thank you.
MR. CREEL:

Okay, fThe property that we're
discussing is zoned LB, LB is limited business.
It ia the Ieast intensive business zone in the
ordinance. e used to this call this professional
business begause it was designed to accommodate
atterneys' offices and engineering offices and
those kind of things.

If you will bear with me, I'm going to
read just a couple of things to you to kind of put
this into perspective.

The Limited Busineas district is
astablished and intended to accamrodate
principally small-scale office development suited
to professional, general administrative, general
sales office uses, plus limited small-scale retail
and service uses like small restaurants, banks,

small busineases, service establishments, dry
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cleaning dropoff establishments and bookshops,
institutional uses, libraries, places of worship,
daycare fagilities and schools and medivm-density
residential uses of varicus types.

The 18 district accoewodates standalone
businessaa development, as weil as serve as
transitional zoning between the more intensive
comrercial development and low- to medium-density
regidential neighborhoods.

If you go back to the overhead of this
property that we're talking about, there are a
couple of business uses around there, but nothing
as intense as a convenience store with gas sales.

The issue here today that y'all are
congidering is whether or not this meets &ll nine
of the criteria for conditional use and it has to
meet all nine, and I will read those real quick.

A conditional use complies with all
applicable zoning district standards. That can be
argurentative,

The conditicnal use complies with all
the use-specific standards in 23-4-3, And I have
that here, and the only use-spacific standard has
to do with lighting, that the lighting can't be
too intense, All lighting, including lighting for
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canopies shall be designed and installed to
prevent glare and excessive light spillover onto
all adjacent properties. Mo sovrce of
illumination shall be allowed if such source of
illumination would be visible from a
residentially-zoned district to the extent that it
is a nuisance and interferes with the residential
use of that area. That's really the only
condition there.

How, real quick, the other seven
criteria; The conditional use is compatible with
the character of the surrounding lands. That can
be argumentative, you know. Hey, it's going be a
store, People in the neighborhood can walk to the
store to accommodate it. So you can get an
argument from both sides on that,

The fourth one: The conditional use
avoids significant adverse odor, nolses, glare,
vibration impacts on surrounding lands regarding
refuse collection, service delivery, parking and
loading signs, lighting and other site elements.
e do not believe the request meets that criteria.

The next one: The conditional use is
configured and designed to screen, buffer or
othervise minimize the adverse visual impacts on
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adjacent lands. We've seen convenlence stores.
tfe see what kind of light they put out, ife see
what kind of traffic that they generate.

The cenditicnzl use avolds sionificant
deterioration in water and air resources, wildlife
habitat, scenic resources and other natural
rescurces, And as you can see, this property
wa're talking about -- not just this property but
the rest is covered with trees.

The conditional use maintains safe and
convenient ingress and egress and traffic flow
onto and through the site by the vehicles and
pedestrians and safe road conditions, and we've
had a lot of discussion about the concerns about
the traffic here.

The next one: The conditicnal use
allows for the protection of property values and
the ability of neighboring lands to develop the
uses permitted in the zoning district. That can
be arguwentative.

And the last cne: The conditienal use
complies with all other relevant city, state and
federal laws and regulations,

The first zoning in the ordinance that

allows convenience stores with gas sales as a
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use-by-right is CB zon
hospitality ard entertainvent zoning, which is
typically along Highway 90 where you have a lot of
traffic and hotels and those kind of things.

This is allowed under the ordinance as
conditional use in LB Zoning.

MHow, as we've rewminded y'all many times
and reminded Council many times that if, for
whatever reason, the use -- if y'all approve the
use and they don't comply with the conditions,
then you can revoke the permit. But once you
puild a convenience store and you revoxe the
perrmit, what else is that site or that building
good for? Ancther convenience store.

So the staff has looked at this. ¥We
have scme real concerns about it, and we think
that it's not appropriate for this location and

would reconmend that it not be approved.

MR. LCELAHOUSEY:
I mrove that we deny the applicant's
rejuest.
MR. COLLIER:
Second.
CHAIRYAH CELLENGER:

We have a motion te deny the applicant's
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request by Mr. Celahousey: secord by Mr. Collier.
Is there any discussion?
There being no discussien, vote by
raisirg your hands for the moticn. Mr. Tedare,
Ms, Magee, Mr. Stenovich, Mr. Bogard, Mr. Collier,

#r. Delahousey, Dr. Crawdy, Mr. Carron, Mr. King,

Mr. Snow and Mr. Poulos. MHr. Dellerger will
abstain from the vote. So let the record show
that that hearing is denied with one abstairing.

We're going to take a twoe-minute recess
just to allow the pecple to leave.

{Off the record.)

CHAIRMAN [ELLENGER:

We're going to recenvere the Planning
Commission meeting.

The next case we'll h#ar is a tree
hearina, which is Case thzwber TR-26-071, Jordan
Bursch on behalf of Memitage Homes, fommerly cwned
by Elliott Homes, which is an application to
remove 27 protecteéd trees, live oaks and
magrolias, to @u'rnorize the construction of a new
sinjle-fawily subdivision in Hawk Creek Fhase 11

rg 49 lots for a parcel of land identifaied

2! of Hawk Creek subdivision lccated on

Wwest Gzklawmn Road, Tax Parcel Nuzber
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110&-01-0 This was advertised on March

20th and Harch 26
MR. BYURSCH:
Thank you, sir.
MS. SERPAS:
Fold on.
CHUTRMAN

LLENGER:
View the video, pleass,
1S, SERPPS:

Watch the video first.

{Video played.)

Ukay. ALl right. We're ready.
CHATRMAN [ELLENGER:

Thank you,

MR. BURSCH:

Jorflan Bursch on behalf of Meritage
Homes.

And if you recall, this is the second
tire now that we're back looking at these trees,
and the first tire, there were a ccuple of charages
that we needed to make to be able to get to where
we are tcday. e have gone through the Tree
Cegmattee, We got unanimous approval to bring
this teo you all, so 1 appreciate the cpportunity

to present this.
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1 just want to highlight the overall
project. We have 49 lots that we're going to
build out here, and, you know, of those krees
right row -- let me back up.

Our preliminary plat has bkeen approved
subject to this tree hearing, so the site has
already been reviewed. MUEQ has already reviened

e pieces for a

all of cur stormwater. HAll ef thos
perrit-ready subdivision have been reviewed and
approved subject to this tree permit application.

And as gart of this tree permit
application, T  ust wanted to ler everybody know
we have gone thirough the tree survey process and
identified giii of the trees. BAnd from that, we
went througt the tree approval process last time
and, ul!;"iqely, there were concerned citizens
that apgedled that to Council. At Council, we
were derfied and then we came back and made the
changed tha- I will address here tecday and that's
whal Erings us here a secord time,

So with that, overall, we are asking to
sepove 27 protected trees, but I will also state
that we have over 30 protected trees that will

remain on the site. Of those, we have 17 of the

49 lots that will have protected trees on the lot.
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